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Introduction to the 2015/16 Statement of Accounts by
Councillor Graham Morgan, Chairperson to the Authority

Chairperson's introduction

| am pleased to introduce the Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority's
Statement of Accounts. The Autharity's outward facing name continues fo
confirm the increasing importance placed by the Authority and it's Members on
the use of waste as a resource, rather than simply disposing of waste in landfill

As the Chairperson of the Authority, together with the Members of the
Authority, we are responsible for making sure that the Authority makes the best
use of its financial and staff resources, managing a turnover of E69M with a
siaff of fewer than 30, A par of thal responsibility is mel whan the Authority produces its annual
Statement of Accounts. The Accounts show people across Merseyside how much our services
have cost and how funding for those services has been provided They help to provide
reassurance to the people of Merseyside about the care we take over the public funds that have
been placed al our disposal by the public through the Levy

The Levy for 2015-16 was not increased in overall terms, continuing a trend of reduction or stability
over the last five years. This year the Levy stability was achieved through a combination of savings
across the Authority, through initiatives like interim waste contracts; fogether with and a planned
contribution from the General Fund and dhvidend from Mersey Waste holdings Ltd (MWHL) of £4m
to cushion the impact of the Authority's costs on constituent District Councis

Dwring 2015-16 the Authority has continued to work with its pariner, Merseyside Energy Recovery
Ltd (MERL, formerly named Sita Sembocorp UK), to pragress with building facilities in Redcar and
in Knowsley to enable the new EAW o be delivered in 2016-17 via the Resource Recovery
Contract. Meanwhile the Authority continued to deliver Landfill for disposal as well as Waste
Diversion from landfill via Interim contracts. HWRC's and Materials Recycling Facilities enable the
Authonty continua to support racycling across Merseyside, and a new HWRC was opened in
Liverpool during the year. This continues to be important for Merseyside despite market conditions
which make it difficult to get as much value from this as in previous years, Raising awarenass of
the need to re-use and recycle more, raising waste up the waste hierarchy is a key activity as real
savings can be achieved where less household waste goes to landfill or for disposal via the EAVW
facility in future. Safe management of Closed Landfill Sites across Merseyside means that potential
risks to the population and the environment are minimised.

Effective financial managament has been key (o ensunng the Authority s able to wtilise balances to
offsat fulure financial pressures, The Authority has planned to use its balances to offsel cost
pressures that would otherwise impact on the Levy for Districts. At the same time the Authority has
continued to review all its costs and has been able to minimise the immediate impact of the Levy
on District Councils for another year. The Authority continues to minimise the cost of the Lavy to
the people of Marsayside while providing more environmeantally benaficial ways of dealing with
residual waste The Authority aims lo continue to be an efficient and low spending organisation and
this will be sustained through a sound financial funchion

Chairperson of the Authority : q"%..elk-'i._.ﬂf"r i ﬂu'i. 2016
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Explanatory foreword to the statement of accounts
Background to the Authority and its functions

Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authaority (MRWA, which is the public facing name of the statutary
loint Waste Disposal Authority) came into being on 1% April 1986 on the demise of the former
Metropolitan County of Merseyside. The statutory duty and power over Waste Disposal was
allocated to the new Waste Disposal Authority which was created by statute for the purpose of
Waste Disposal,

The arrangements mean that MRWA is a local authority that meets 1o take decishons on how it Tullils
its responsibilities. MAWA is made up of Councillars (the Members) appointed to the Authority by
each of the constituent authorities in Merseyside, The number of Members appointed by each
Council is a matter of statutory law. The Authority is made up of nine Members appointed by the
constituent authorities as follows: Liverpool 3, Sefton 2, Wirral 2, Knowsley 1, 5t Helens 1, These
Members sit as the local authority on a statutory basis,

MEWA has the statutory duties and powers to dispose of Merseyside’s waste. The constituent
authorities have no such disposal powers, but are statutory waste collection authorities and have a
duty to deliver controlled waste to MEWA for disposal

The functions, role, duties and powers of MAWA are set out In law and can only be amended by
changes in statute. This has taken place in the past, under the terms of the Environmental protection
Act 1990 when the role of the Authority was amanded.

Under the Envirenmental Protection Act 1990, MRWA is primarily respansible for:-

al making arrangemaents for the disposal of waste collected by its constituent Waste
Collection Authorities (namely Knowsley MBC, Liverpool CC, St Helens MBC, Sefton
MWBC and Wirral MBC;

by providing and making arrangemaents [with contractors) for the provision and
operation of Household Waste Recycling Centres {HWRC) for use by members of the
public and the removal of wastes depasited at those sites;

£} making arrangements for the recycling and composting of waste and meeting its
statutory performance standards;

d} discretionary payment of ‘recycling credits’ 1o third parties; and
&) aftercare of seven former landfill sites in the ownership, or under the control of,
MRS

The Envirpnmental Protection Act 1990 also gives MBWA certain powers for the purpose of
discharging its duties, In refabion to controlled waste, this includes a power to ‘give directions to the
waste collection authorithes within its area as o the persons to whom and places at which such
waste is 1o be dellvered

(MrWR)
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There are various other duties and powers granted to MRWA including powers to minimise the
generation of controlled waste (ie. household, commercial and industrial) under the Waste
Minimisation Act 1998; and a duty to apply the Waste Hierarchy under the Waste (England and
Wales) Regulations 2011 and as amended in the Waste (England and Wales) (Amendment)
Regulations 2012,

RRAWA is established by statute and collects Its levy by statute, neither of these is a valuntary
arrangament and MAEWA collect monies from the constituent Merseyside councils to meet all its
Habilities, This statutory right to Levy a charge an the District Counclls cormes from the Joint Waste
Disposal Authorities {Levies) (England) Regulations 2006, 51 2006/248 and from the Environment
Agency (Levies) (England and Wales) Regulations 2011 51 2011/696. The effect of this Is that the Levy
iz @ statutory charge on the District Councils that they have no choice over. As the Councils are also
hound by statute, they are required to pay the Levy and have no power or discretion not to pay. Any
CouncH that falled to respond to the demand for the levy would be in breach of its own statutory
duties,

MAW A delivers its principal services throcgh a number of waste contracts. The Waste Management
and Recycling Contract was let in 2009 and is the primary interface with waste collection authorities
and members of the public through a number of fadilities including Waste Transfer Stations, MRFs
and HWRCs,

The majority of residual waste is landfilled under separate contracts, however, landfilling currently
attracts an additional landfill tax charge of £82.60 per tonne (higher in 2016-17), Therefore, a
number af interim contracts were secured 1o divert residual waste from landfill, The lanafill and
interim contracts will be replaced by a thirty vear Besource Recovery Contract which was let in 20132
and |5 on scheduled to commence Commissioning in May 2016, and to be fully operational in
October 2016.

MRWA's main aim |5 to manage waste as a resource which means providing and promoting
sustainable waste management through the waste hlerarchy where landfill is the least favourable
option in enviconmental and financlal terms,

MAWA acts mainly inan intelligent client procurement and contract managerment role with around
96.5% of the budget expended on contracted, statutory and non-controflable costs, There are
currently 30 staff on the Establishment with a significant proportion of support services provided
externally through the following service level agreements:

= Payroll and pensions: 5t Helens MBC

= Accounts Payvable: 5t Helens MMEC

s Legal, Estates and Health and Safety: 5t Helens MBC
= |CT: MerseyTravel
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Governance and Membership

MAWA consists of nine elected Members representing the five constituent district counciis in
Merseyside, The number of Members per district is set by statute and is shown in brackets against
each council below zlongside the membership during 2015-16:

Enowsley [1): Councillor Graham Morgan

Liverpool {3): Councillors Tony Concepcion, Laura Robertson-Caolling and Andrew Foxley
St Helens{1): Councillor Alan Cunliffe

Sefton {2): Councillors Kevin Cluskey and lohn Fairclough

Wirral (2} Councillors Irene Williams and Steve Williams

Halton Council has delegated part of its functions under Section 9EA of the Local Government Act
2000 and the Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) (England) Regulations
2012 to enable its waste to be accepted under MRWA's contracts. A Member from Halton has been
appointed to MAWA [Councillor 51ef Nelson), however, this Member does not have voling righis.

MAWA has a schedule of five meetings per year, however, although special meetings may be called
from time 1o time.

Uniike some other joint boards on Merseyside, MRWA does not have legal powers to pay any form
of remuneration to its Members,

Although MEWA Iz nota "relevant authornty” snder the Locabism Act 2011, a voluntary Code of
Conduct for Members was approved in 2013 ard is currently in place.

Scrutiny Arrangements

MAWA's Sscheme of Delegation provides for three levels of decision-making, namely Key Decisions,
Executive Decisions and Administrative Decisions.

MHAWA does not have a Scruting Panet as all Key Decisions are considered by full Authority, The
Scheme of Delegation does provide for the scrutiny of Executive Decisions where two or mare
Members call in a propased decission and these scruting items are subsequently considered at full
Authority meetings,

The Localism Act 2011 5chedule 2 (9FF) provides powers of scruting to refevant authorities over
partner authority actions, including those actions of MEWA, MAWA has sent officers (o attend a
number of scruting panels over the yvears and makes an anndal offer to each of the Merseyside and
Haltan councils.

Management of the Authority

The Autharity has a Chief Executive whao s also the Head of Paid Service, supported by a Director
responsible for contracts (although the post holder will retire at the end of 2016).

T (MRWA)
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MRWA s required to appoint statutory officers, namely a Chiet Finance Officer (under Section 73 of
the Local Government Act 1985); a Monitoring Officer (Section 5 of the Local Government and
Housing Act 1989); and a Clerk (Section 34(8] of the Local Government Act 1585).

These dutles are currently undertaken by MRWA staff, The Director of Finance role incorporates the
Chief Finance Officer duties and the Assistant Director of Governance and Performance has been
appointed as Clerk and Monitonng Officer, Delegations exist to deputise in their absence,

The Contents of the Staterments of Accounts
The Authority's statement of accounts includes the following main statements and notes:

# The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement (CIES), which shows the gains and
lasses of the Authority in the year;
&  The Balance Sheet, which shows how resources available (o the Authority are held interms
of assets and liabilities;
*  The Movement in Reserves Statement (MIRS), which shows the changes in the Authority's
financial resources over the year; and
e The Cash Flow, which shows how the movement in reserves has been reflected in cash
Flivars.
There are also a series of notes to the accounts which provide further information to support the
main statements. Each key financial disclosure aiso has a comparative figure from the preceding year
to enable the reader Lo consider how the financial performance of the Authority has changed over

the reporting period.

Following on from the accounting statements for the main Authority there is a similar set of
statements, notes and comparisons that incorporate the Group Accounts for the Authority and its
associated companies and interests,

Budget comparison

The Authority's statement of accounts should be reviewed alongside the Outturn Statement. The
Outturn Statement shows for the reporting period how the Authority's planned expenditure and
income, the budget, was matched by its actual expenditure and income. The outturn slatement is
accompanied by a series of comments and explanations which provide lurther details about where
expenditure and income has moved away from planned levels and why. A summary of the Outturn
Statements and explanations is set oul below!

Capltal expenditure

The Capital Expenditure outturn position shows the Revised Capital Programme as approved at the
Authority's budget meeting on 5" February 2018, the actual expenditure for the year and the
variation from the revised capital programme.
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The outturn shows that the Authority spent £1 553k of an approved programme of £1,798% which
represents an underspend of £45k, which means that in overall terms the programme has largely
been achipved

The most significant aspect of the programme related to the development of the new Househaold
Waste Recycling Centre (HWRC) in Liverpoal at Old Swan. The new HWRC was opened in December
2015 and has been operating successfully since then. The opening of the site was delayed by
unexpected planning and site access issues, which caused additional costs. The additional £75k over
programme was identified early enough to ensure that adequate funding was available from the
HWRC minor works programme to finance the Old Swan site without taking additional amounts
from capital resources.

The cther important aspect of the programme in this period has been the ongaing development of
the new ICT system to support the RRC and WMRAC contracts when the RRC becomes aperational,
This COGNOS system will minimise manual interventians in information flows and will ensure key
contract data is available guickly and accurately for decision makers,

The financial impact of the overall slight underspend is that the Authority’s earmarked capital fund
has not been utilised quite as heavily as planned and the balance remains available 1o support the
planned programme in the current financial year,

Revenue expenditure

The Revenue Outturn s compared with the Revised Estimate {approved at the Authority Budget
meeting on 5" February 2016). The final Revenue Outturn shows an overspend for the period of
£304k compared with the revised budget which means there needs to be a contribution from the
General Fund of £59k {rather than the expected contribution to the General Fund of £245k at
revised estimate).

The overall outcome contains a number of variances from the individual revised estimates and the
main differences can be analysed as follows:-

E000
{under)/over
spend
Establishment
The underspend here reflects savings across the board on the (83}

administration of the Authority and its staffing. The
underspend would have been more significant except for
unknown insurance charges,

Page | 7 @ FIW.Jl‘.



Contract payments

The Authority managed its costs on the contacts well and the
owverspend is just over (.5% compared with the overall budget
of £61M.

Closed landfill site management

The Authority has made savings on the cost of the Cipsed
Landfill S5ites it manages.

Rent, rates & depreciation

The revised estimate of the cost of impairment was lower than
the actual costs of impairment.

Recycling credits

There 15 a saving here which reflects an overall reduction in
tonnages recycled by Districts for which credits may be
claimed.

Communications

On a relatively small budget, relatively large savings across the
board.

Strategy & Resources

The savings arse mainly from reductions inspending across
the board.

Other costs

The contribution in respect of technical revenue and capital
accounting.

Interest costs

The combination of higher than estimated interest payahle
(EG4k} and lower than anticipated income from interest
receivable (E18K) has had an adverse effect on the Authority's
costs.

324

(85)

96

(56)

{14}

{77}

117

B2
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A summary of the Balances at 31 March 2015 with a comment about why the amounts are set aside
is shown as follows:

£M

General Reserve 15.994
To cover risks to the Authority in carrying out its functions, and

in fine with the budget strategy to mitigate the impact of the

Levy on constituent Chstrict Councils. There is already a

commitment 1o utilising a very significant proportion of this

reserve to subsidise the Levy in 2016-17 and it is likely that the

remainder will be reguired in the year that follows. This cannot

continue unabated as the fund will run out quickly, leaving a

chiff face increase in the Levy over the next budget cycles.

Capital Reserve 7431
To ofiset the costs to the Authority of borrowing Lo finance
capital investment

18425

Aszely

During the year the Autharity completed the construction of an additional Househald Waste
Recycling Centre (HWRC) at Old Swan in Liverpool, Liverpool Coundil provided the land for the site
and rent it to the Authority for a peppercomn rent. The Authority doveloped the site for use as an
HWRCL at an overall cost of some £1,4M which was funded from the Autharity's capital fund. There
are no other significant new assets or liabilities that impact on the Authority in the year.

The new HWREC and all the Authority's other assets were the subject of a year-end valuation to
ensure that they are carrred in the accounts at the most appropriate value under the fair value basis
of measurement.

The Authority signed the Resource Recovery Contract for the long term disposal of residual waste at
the end of 2013. The contract will include the Authority wsing a Rail Transfer Loading Station in
Knowsley, with waste being transported from there to an Energy from Waste Plant at Redcar for
ultimate disposal. The Assets and liabilities associated with this PEP contract will only be due to
come onto the Authority's Balance Sheet after the plant has been commissioned and is fully
operational, which is expected to be in October 2016, |e. the fallowing Bnancial vear.

Pension liabilities

The balance sheet includes a net pension liability of £3.9M, This s a decrease of £292k on the
pension liability in the prior year's accounts. The change in the Hability reflect the changes in the

Page | 5 @fmwa




value of the assets held by the pension fund on behall of the Authority and the numbers of and ages
of employees and former employees who are Members of the pension schemes which the Autharity
has a Hability to support. The values of the pension assets and liabilities are assessed periodically
{every three years) by the scheme actuaries and contribution rates for employers are adjusted to
ensure that the schemes labilities are funded over time. Employee contribution rates are also
reviewed periodically to further ensure liabilities are funded.

Unusual material items

The Authority did not make any material unusual payments in the year (in comparison the prévious
year 2 £28.9M payment was made to District Councils under the terms of an Memorandum of
Understanding to pay Waste Development Fund monles to District Councils for the furtherance of
shared objectives under the loint Waste Strategy).

There was a material unusual credit in the accounts of £40M, which was a dividend from hiersay
Waste Holdings Limited {(MWHL) as a result of a de-capitalisation exercise. The Directors of MWHL
reviewed the amount of cash held in the company and reached a decision that there was more in
the company than was required to continue normal business as a going concern. The Directors
agreed with the Authority that the ‘surplus’ cash could be returned to the Authority under the terms
of a de-capitalisation arrangement, This exercise was completed in the year and the surplus of EAM
was returngd to support the Authority’s revenue position in the year,

Changes in accounting policy

There has been no significant change in any accounting policy in the year.
Changes in statutory functions

There have been no changes in statutory functions during the year.
Current bormowing

The Authority has a portfolio of loans taken out between 1989 and 2007 to finance capital
expenditure over a number of years; the outstanding balance at 31 March 2016 was just over E17M.
One of the loans is a Lender Option Borrower Option (LOBO) loan with a commercial bank; the
remainder are loans from the Public Works Loans Board (PWLB). The PWLB loans are scheduled 1o
mature at various dates between 2017 and 2058, while the final maturity on the LOBO is 2065.

The Authority has not borrowed additional funds to finance capital expenditure since 2007, and has
instead relied on utilising a capital reserve set aside from General Funds to support capital
developments. The Capital Fund does not retain sufficient balances to fund very significant capital
developments in future and should these be required further prudential borrowing is likely to be
required.
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Provisions, contingencies and write offs
The Autharity carries provisions in the accounts.

One of the provisions Is in respect of the Closed Landfill sites managed by the Authority. The
Authority established the closed landfill provision in 2013/14 to recognise the need to i:nrmlde for
the potential future costs of maintaining Closed Landfill sites across Merseyside for which the
Authority is responsible. In 2015-16, the calculation of the amount set aside as a provision has been
reviewed and amended to better refiect the potential future costs that the Authority may face in
managing its Clased Landfill sites. This has resulted in a reduction to the brought forward provision
of £272k (down 1o €4,295k), refiecting in the main, a gradual reduction to the amounts that will be
spent on closed land fill sites year on year as they begin Lo stabilise and settle requiring less

maintenance,

Other provisions include an obligation to Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd, the Authority’s wholly owned
subsidiary, under a back to back funding arrangement for a payment made by the Company to the
Citrus Pension Fund. To date the Company has not sought payment to discharge the abligation.

The Authority has a 50% stake in Bidston Methane Ltd, Currently the company is running at a loss
and the Authority's share of the loss is C203K as at 31 March 2016 based on the latest available
accaunts to 31 March 2015 (which is an improvement of £48k). The Authority has given a
commitment to support the company financially; hence it remains valued as a going concern. The
Authority therefore recognises that it has a contingent liability for its share of the potential loss.

There are no significant write offs or impairment losses to reflect in the accounts.

AL this stage there are no material events, adjusting or non-adjusting, that could have an impact on
the financial statements or the way that they should be interpreted

Local economic circumstances

The statement of accounts for 2015-16 should be considered alongside the budget for 2016-17 and
the medium term financial prospects for the Authority.

The current financial enviranment that local government in England faces is one of continuing
austerity. The Authority’s constituent District Councils have faced a number of years of very
significant spending reductions and that pattern is set to continue and to a degree accelerate as the
Government moves from a national model of supporting local government spending to a more
localised mode| with oppartunities for funds raised locally to be retained locally, During this perlod
of financial rebalancing the resaurces available 1o constituent District Councils have been reduced
significantly. At the same time over a period of six budget cycles the Authority has reduced or
maintained the Levy on the Districts at a neutral level, The maintenance of the Levy at these |evels
has anly been passible in the latter years with cushioning from the General Fund and In 201516 by a
dividend from the Authority’s wholly owned company,

Financial pressure on the Authority continues to grow, and despite reductions in staffing and other
subsidiary costs the main cost driver is Waste tonnages delivered by the Districts. The transition

P 1 (MrwR)
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fram landfill and temporary ‘interim’ contracts to the commissioning phase and then full operation
of the new Resource Recovery Contract during 2016-17 will see a growth in costs.

In the budget for 2016-17 the Authority recognised this growth in costs, and was looking to increase
the Levy modestly over the next three years. Constituent District Councils reguested that this be
detayed, and in agreeing to this request the Authority approved a budget with a Levy that was
neutral in overall terms once again — recognising that this would mean utilising all financial reserves
and eventually leading to larger levy Increase proposals in future.

For 2016/17 the prospect of expenditure supported by Levy and a very significant contribution from
General Fund balances (almost £10M) meant that the budget is in batanca, the prospect for future
vears is significantly less certain,

If the Authority’s wholly owned company is no longer required for accessing historic landfill
contracts and the Authority accepts the transfer of its pension Rabilities to the Authority then the
Authority may be able to access the funds held in the company. Together with the remalining
General Fund balances this is likely to be sufficient to close the gap to the Levy, keeping the potential
increase still relatively modest in 201718, Thereafter, with litthe available out of the Authority's
reserves Lo support the Levy there is a prospect of a more significant Levy increase, before the
financial benefits of the RRC can start to be felt, through third party income and electricity income
sharing via the RRC,

A5 a part of the budget process the Authority agreed with the City Region to undertake a strategic
review of waste disposal and collection across Merseyside, this may lead to a review of the assets
managed and maintained by the Authority across Merseyside, with a view to reducing costs in the
Medium Term. This will be conducted during 2016/17.
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CERTIFICATE

| certify that this Statement of Accounts presents a true and fair view of the financial position
of Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority (the statutory Waste Disposal Authority for
Merseyside) at 31 March 2016 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended. In
doing so | authorise the Statement for fssue and confirm that it is this date up to which
events after the Balance Sheet date have been considered in preparing the Statement.

1‘.__'.,;_"_—;.{'“"“‘ }k
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Peter Williams _
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Treasurer to the Authority Date = %\ % &
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STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITIES
The Authority's responsibilities

The Authority is reguired to:

* Make arrangements for the proper administration of its financial affairs and to secure
that one of its officers has the responsibility for the administration of those affairs. In
this Authority that officer is the Director of Finance;

« Manage its affairs to secure aconomic, efficlent and effective use of resources and
safeguard its assets, and

« Approve the statement of accounts.

The Director of Finance's responsibilities

The Director of Finance, elsewhere referred to as the Treasurer to the Authority, is
responsible for the preparation of the Authority's Statement of Accounts in accordance with
statutory proper practices as sel out in the CIPFA Code of Practice on Local Autharity
Accounting in the United Kingdom, the Code of Practice (the Code).

In prepanng this Statement of Accounts the Director of Finance has:

s Selected suitable accounting policies and then applied them consistently,
« Made judgements and estimates that were reasonable and prudent; and
« Complied with the Local Authority Code.

The Director of Finance has also:

+ Kept proper accounting records which were up 1o date; and
= Taken reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other

irregularities.
NS, - C\
S i
\&.ﬁ?‘?‘:—"‘.:xn P
Pater Willams

Treasurer to the Autharity DEIE:'I;:‘\Q-H \ha
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Annual Governance Statement 2015/16
Scope of responsibility

Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority (operating as Merseyside Recycling and Waste
Authority] [the Authority] is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
actordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and
properly accounted for, and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Authority
also has a duty under the Local Government Act 1999 to make arrangements to secure
continuous improvement in the way in which its functions are exercised, having regard to a
combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness,

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Authority s responsible for putting in place
proper arrangements for the governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its
functions, and which includes arrangements for the management of risk.

The Authority has approved and adopted a code of corporate governance, which is
consistent with the principles of the CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance
In Local Government. A copy of the authority’s code is on our website at
www.meneysidewda, gov.uk or can be obtained from:

The Clerk and Manitaring Officer
Merseyside Recycling and Waste Authority
7 Floor, No 1 Mann Island

Liverpool

L3 18P

This statement explains how the Authority has complied with the code and also meets the
reguirements of Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011, regulation 4(3), which
requires all relevant bodies to prepare an annual povernance statement.

The purpose of the governance framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, culture and values by
which the Authority is directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to,
engages with and leads its communities. It enables the Authaority to monitor the
achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives have led to
the delivery of appropriate services and value for money.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to
manage risk to a reasonable level. It cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies,
aims and ohjectives and can therefore only provide reasonable and not zbsolute assurance
of effectiveness, The system of internal control is based on an ongoing process designed to
identify and prioritise the risks to the achlevement of the Authority’s policies, aims and
abjectives, to evaluate the likelihood and potential impact of those risks being realised, and
to manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

Page | 15 @HW_A



The governance framework has been in place at the Authority for the year ended 31 March
2016 and up to the date of approval of the Statement of Accounts.

The governance framework

The following are the key elements of the systems and processes which underpin the
Authority's governance arrangements:

e there is an established Performance Management Framework underpinned by a
Corporate Plan which sets out the Authority’s long-term aims;

o the current Corporate Plan was approved by Members on 20" November 2015 and
has a mission statement, “To contribute to the economic, environmental and social
well-being of Merseyside by promoting the best use of resources and ensuring that
waste is sustainably managed.” The plan is delivered through the development and
implementation of an annual Service Delivery Plan which reflects current corporate
strategies, risks and priorities;

e performance against the Service Delivery Plan is published on a quarterly basis and
circulated to Members and other stakeholders;

e there is a Joint Recycling and Waste Management Strategy for Merseyside in place
which has been approved by all partner organisations and was used to inform the
procurement of major waste contracts, most notably the Waste Management and
Recycling Contract and the Resource Recovery Contract;

e there Is 2 Risk Management Strategy in place which provides the Authority with a
framework to identify and analyse the risks associated with its activities and
ultimately supports the Authority in planning for and delivering its Corporate Plan.

e roles and responsibilities of Members and the Scheme of Delegation are reviewed
and approved annually, The Authority's scrutiny function is delivered by the full
Authority and communication protocols are in place;

s (odes of Conduct are In place for officers and for Members, both of which include a
Register of Interests;

« The Authority's Constitution, including a comprehensive set of Procedural Rules
which define its internal control mechanisms, is in place and reviewed regularly;

o the autherity's financial management arrangements conform with the governance
requiremants of the CIPFA Statement on The Role of the Chief Financial Officer in
Local Government (2010);
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» audit functions are delivered through the full Authority with specific powers
delegated to the Audit and Governance Committee;

+ internal audit is provided by 5t Helens Council under a service level agreement and
operates 1o Internal Auditing Standards as laid down by CIPFA,

s procedures and processes are in place to ensure that the Authority conducts its
business in compliance with its legal obligations, including specialist advice where
necessary;

¢ there is a Whistleblowing Policy and a Comments and Complaints Procedure to assist
in the transparency of the Authority's business;

¢ training and development for Members and officers is delivered through the
Member Training and Development Plan, the Staff Development Scheme and a
Corporate Training Programme;

= the Authority has a Communications Strategy to deliver clear channels of
communication with stakeholders and consultation processes are undertaken as
necessary, The strategy is currently under review to ensure it remains fit for

purpose;

= Inter Authority Agreements are being reviewed and where appropriate, put in place
to ensure effective partnership and joint working arrangements; and

* Internal Control Statements of Assurance are obtained from the Chief Executive as
Chief Officer for Authority, from 5t Helens MBC which provides key services and
from the board of Mersey Waste Holdings Limited in which the Authority has a
wvested interest,

Review of eff cctiveness

The Authority has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the
effectiveness of its governance framework including the system of internal control, The
review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the executive managers within the
authority, namely the Primary Assurance Group, who have responsibility for the
development and maintenance of the governance environment, the head of internal audit's
annual report, and also by comments made by the external auditors and other review
agencies and Inspectorates.

The Authority measures Its arrangements against a Code of Corporate Governance
developed and approved by the Authority in accordance with the CIPFA/SOLACE framework.
The Code supports the delivery of goed governance through the establishment of the
following roles:

Page | 17 @Hwa
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e the Authority is responsible for the approval of the Code of Corporate Governance
and [ts associated annual review and assessment;

e the Authority Is responsible for the approval of the Annual Governance Statement;

s the Authority is responsible for the approval of the Annual Statement of Accounts
once they have been approved by the Chief Finance Officer and audited;

s the scrutiny function is provided by the full Authority;

e the Chief Finance Officer is responsible for ensuring the proper financial
administration of the Authority, including:

o the preparation of the statement of accounts;
o accounting records and control systems, and
o internal audit

s audit and risk issues are dealt with by the full Authority; and

e the Audit and Governance Committee has delegated powers to deal with
governance matters where statutory deadlines require approvals prior to scheduled
full Authority meetings.

The Primary Assurance Group has reviewed the Authority's Code of Corporate Governance
and conducted an annual assessment to identify and address any weaknesses in the
Authority’s governance arrangements, An action plan for delivering improvements has
been developed and will be implemented during 2016/17 to continue to strengthen and
improve the Authority’s governance.

We have been advised on the implications of the result of the review of the effectiveness of
the governance framework by the Primary Assurance Group and that the arrangements
continue to be regarded as fit for purpose in accordance with the governance framework.
The areas already addressed and those to be specifically addressed with new actions
planned are outlined below.

Significant governance issues

The review process did not highlight any significant issues regarding the Authority's
governance or internal control environment.
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Other governance issues

The review process highlighted some areas where there is 2 need to improve governance
and controls, Whilst these are important and action plans are being developed to address
them they are not considered significant. Areas for improvement include:

= Lontribution to the Strategic Review to be undertaken by the Merseyside and Halton
Councils Leaders and Chief Executives Group.,

s Areview of the Authority's services and infrastructure which will identify efficiencies
and feed into the above Strategic Review.

We propose over the coming year to take steps to address the above matters to further
enhance our governance arrangements. We are satisfied that these steps will address the
need for improvements that were identified in our review of effectiveness and will monitor
their implementation and operation as part of our next annual review.

i\ 7
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BALANCE SHEET

The balance sheet shows the assets and liabilities of the Authority at the year
end The net assets of the Authority are matched by two categones of reserves.
The first is useable reserves which can be deployed for any purpose, subject 1o
the need o maintain a prudent level of working capital. The second category,
unuseable reserves, are sel aside in order to meet statutory and accounting
requirements.

Notes 3=l March
20186

E000
34,877 Property, Plant & Equipment 8 38,543
5138 Long Term Investments 12 5,042
40,115 Long Term Assels 44 585
29 Inventories 13 22
1,288 Shaort Term Debtors 14 1,465
11,257 Cash and Cash Equivalents 15 7514
12,585 Current Assets 9,001
{2,143) Short Term Bomowing 10 (1]
{12,332) Short Term Creditors 16 (12, 764)
{381) Provisions 17 (281)
______{18) Grants receipts in advance 25 (8)
(14,882) Current Liabilities {13,054)
(5,198) Provisions 17 {5, 144)
(17,044) Long Term Bomowing 10 (17.044)
(20,205) Other Long Term Liabilities k&) (18,736)
(42,447) Long Term Liabilities (40,924)
(4,628) Net Assets (392)
20,235 Usable reserves MIiRS 18,055
(24,864) Unusable Reserves 18 (18,447)
(4,628) Total Reserves (392)

Page | 21 @Rwa
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| can canfirm that these accounts present fairly the position of Merseyside Recycling and
Waste Authorily (the statutory wasie disposal authority for Mersayside) as al the
September 2016 and are aulthorised lor [gsue as al thal dale.

R Qx

L S S .

Peter \William=s CPFA

Treasurer to the Authority
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT

The Cash Flow Statement shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the authority
during the year. The statemenl shows how the Authority generates cash and cash
equivalents by ciassifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities, The
amount of net cash flows arising from operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to
which the operations of the Authonty are funded by way of Levy (and any grant income) or
from charges for services. Investing activities represent the extent to which cash outflows
have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Authority's future
service delivery, Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims
on future cash flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrowing) to the Authority

201415
£000

(31,922)

(2,674)

(1,900)

(4)
(32,683)

(307)
____[6.138)
(38,128)

50,386

11,267

Page | 23

Net surplus or {deficit) on the provision of
services

Adjustmant to surplus or deficit on the provision af
sarvices for noncash movements

Less items included in the net surplus or deficit an
the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities

Less feams included in the net surplus or daficit on
the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities

Met Cash flows from Financing Activities

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

In Year Adjustment

Cash and cash equivalents al the beginning of the
reporting panod

Cash and cash squivalents at the and of the
reporting periad

Notes 2015186

£000

(1,508)

19 (2,682)
19 {2,340)

19 {4,000}
2,153

20 (1,752}

21 (5,070}
(4,669)

926
11,257

7.514
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1

Accounting Standards issued but not yet adopted

Under the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting In the United Kingdem 2015M16
(the Code), the Authority is required to disclose information setting out the impact of an
accounting change required by a new accounting standard that has been issued but not yet
adopted by the Code.

The followang standards have been issued that will be adopted by the Code in 2016/17 and
will be applicable to the Authority from 1 April,

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement. This introduces a requirement for the concept of
fair value measureament to be applied to all assets and labilities which use fair value
as a measurement basis In respect of properly, plant and eguipment the only
change s in the valuation of surplus property. Currently surplus property is valued at
existing use value before being reclassified as surplus assets. In future surplus
assels will be valued at fair value.

IFRIC 21 Levies. This clarifies the recognition point for payment of levies as the
aclivity which triggers the payment of the levy. This is not expected to have any
impact on the Authority, as this is already current accounting practice.

In addition there have been a number of minor changes to existing accounting standards

2

IFRS 8 Operating Segments will require the Authority to disclose the factors used to
identify the Authonty's reportable segments. This will require an additional disclosure
in the 2015/16 accounting policies

145 16 Property, Plant and Equipment. The amendment sets out that where non-
current assets are revalued, the gross carmying amount is adjusted in a manner
consistent with the revaluation of the carrying amount. This is not expected (o have a
material impact for the Authority.

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In applying the accounting policies set out in the financial statements, the Authority has had
to make certain judgements about complex transaclions or those involving uncertainty about
future events. The critical judgements made in the Statement of Accounts are:

a) Influences on going concern, such as future funding levels and long term contracts. The
constituent authorities, in common with the rest of local government, are experiencing
significant financial pressures but the Autherity s committed to maintaining and
rmproving value for money and to identifying additional sources of funding where
possible, to reduce demands on the levy it raises from constituent authorities.

B) The Authorty has determined that it exercises control over two entities

*« Mersey Waste Holdings Lid through 100% shareholding, and

@D
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d)

a)

= Bidston Methane Lid through a joint venture,

The Authority's interests in these two companies are refiected in the Authority's Group
Accounts al pages 85 fo 100 of the Statement of Accounts.

The Authority is deemed to control ihe services and the residual value of assels crealed
under the Waste Management and Recycling Contract with Veolia. The accounting
policies for service concession arrangements (formerly known as PRI schemes and
similar contracis) have been applied to these contracts and assets (valued at £15.0m)
are recognisad as Properly Plant and Equipment on the Autharity’s balance sheet. The
cost of the Authonty's contract is mitigated by some third party income but this is both
variable and insufficiently significant to impact on the balance sheel entries in respact of
the service concess:on.

The Authority has reviewsd the accounting classification and treatment of the household
waste and recycling centres leased from constituent autharities, The Authority's view is
that both the land and bulding elements of the leases are operaling leases and
therefore no assets recognised as Property Plant and Equipment on the Authority's
balance shast

The Authority has a 50% stake in Bidston Methane Lid. Currently the company is
running at a loss and the Authority’s share of the loss s £203,000 based on the [atest
available accounts which are as at 31 March 2015 The Authority has given a
commitment to confinue lo support the company financially, hence Il remains valued as
a going concern, The Authority has recognised a contingent liability at Note 31 for the
Authority's share of the potential loss.

The Authority provides for future costs associated with closed landfil sites. The
provision reflects the Authonty's statutory obfigation to manage closed landfill sites. The
value of the provision is based on the anticipated expenditure which will be incurred
over the statutory monitoring period for each site in accordance with guidance issued by
the Environment Agency. The value of the provision has been estimated based on the
average management cost over the last six years, extrapolated over the remaining life of
each site and then discounted to reflect the time value of money, using HM Treasury
discount rates, to arrive at an estimate of the total provision, This estimate s updated
annually

The Authority enterad into a service concession arrangement with Sita SempCorp now
Merseyside Energy Recovery Lid in 2013 for the design, build and ocperation of an
energy from waste facility to be located in Redecar in Cleveland and a rail transfer
loading station in Kirkby on Merseyside. Construchon work s well underway with a view
to the asset becoming fully operational in March 2017, At this stage the Authorily takes
the view that the probability of the contract not being executed in substantially the same
form as it was entered into is considered very remote, therefore no consideration of
whether to include a contingant liability in respect of the penalty clauses of the contract
being applied in the event of such a failure, or the extent of the potential payments
under such a circumstance, has been made This position will be reviewed each year.



Statement of Accounts 2015/M16

3 Assumplions made about the future and other major sources of

estimation uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts conlains a number of estimates figures that are based on
assumptions mada by the Authority about the futurs or that are otherwise uncertain.
Eslimates are made taking into account historical expenence, current trends and other
relevant factors. However, because balances cannot be determined with certainty, actual
results could be materially different from the assumptions and estimates

The items in the Authority's Balance Sheet al 31 March 2016 for which there may be a risk
of material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:

Uncerfaintias

Eiffect if actun! resulis differ

from assumpliona

Property, plant and
equipment

Provisions (Closed landfiil
sites)

Page | 29

Azsels ane depreciated over
vaeful lvves that are dependont
on assumphons about the way
he assel ks used and the
amount of repakrs and
maintenance raquired

In compifing the assel register,
in the absance of reconds -
distinguishing the value of
bulldings from land for individual
assats, the Authority has used
the March 2010 assel valuation
o estimate the valus of tand
and buiidings held prior to 1
Agril 20049,

The Autharity has made
provision for the anticipated
axpenditure costs of managing
the closed tandfill sites, This s
based on the pattarn of

e penditure in the previous 8
years, which have then baan
discounted to net presaent valia
using HM Treasury discount
rates plus an estimate of
infiasticn at CPl. Fulure costs
may vary and the provision wil
be revisited st sach subsequent
batance sheet date.

If the wseful life of assets is
reducod, depraciation increases
and the carmying amaount of the
assets falls

If thee estimated value of land is
understated, the depreciation
charges in subsegueni yaars
will be overstated and vics
VEFZE

The provision does nol iImpact
on the useable resenes
balance. Thersiors thers ks no
effect on the Authority's useable
resanvies if Ihe assumplions
made prove meorres]

if the discouni rate increases by
0.1% the provision would
reduce by £0.057m. Conversaly
if tha discount rale decreases
by 0.1%, e provision wodld
increase by the same amount

D
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Uncoertainilos

Effect if actual results differ
from assumplions

An estimate of the amaount

Gilmoss Materials Recycling
Facility

Pensions liability

Accruals of waste contract
payments

Tha WMRC contract peyment 15
not separated from the cost of
the finance lease undar IFRIC 4
for the Gilmoss MRF

Estimation of the net liahbility to
pay pensions depends on a8
nuember of complex judgements
refaiing to the discount rate
used, the rate al which salzries
are projected o Incresse,
ehanges in retiremeant sges,
mortality rates and axpected
faturns on pension fund assels.
A frm of consulbng actuanes is
engaged by the Pension Fund
o provide expert advice about
the assumplions 1o ba applied

The final waste data fiows and
setiiement of the year end costs
incurred by the Authority s not
complated unii the end of
September each year.
Estimates are made of both the
waste data fiows and the final
amounis in selitement of the
COELS payabia by the Authonty
at the year end

payable over the life of the
contract for the finance lease
slament of the Gilmoss MRF
has been mada. This is based
on the value of the asset and
ihe astimated life of the asset in
thie contract

The effects on the net pensions
liability of changes in indvidual
assumplions ans reviewed
annually by the Authority
Variations in the kiy
assumplions will have the
foliowing impact on the net
liability:

o B 0.1% incresss in the
discount rate will reduce the
nat pension lability by
E0-260m;

« a0 1% incréase in the
assumed leval of pansion
Increates will increase tha
e pension liability by
EC.265m;

« an Increase of ong year in
langevily will incraase the net
pension Mabiiity by £0.283m.

If the wasts data flow

information is significantly

different from thal expecled
then the waste contract
paymants, the landfill tax
payments will be affected

However, the impact of this final

settiement is not expecied to be

significant as the Authorly uses

It cran wasie data in arrving at

the estimates, thosa figures are

tha ones thal are venlied in

Saptembar and the Authorty's

mxparience is thal there have

not been significanl changes in
recent years,
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Uncertainties Effect if actual resulte differ

(rom assumptions

Leasing Discount Rate Tha real discount rate for lsase  The estimated discount rate has
cogls s nol separated clearly been usad fo amive at tha net
within leases and the Gimoss presant value of future lease

MRF leasa payments based on freasury
discount rale and RPIL
Long term contracts The Authority has entered intoa Al this stage the probability of
lang tarm Service concession the contract not being executed
contract with Semboarp LIK in substantially the same farm

(SSUK). The contract makes as il was enferad info is

provision for penalty payments  considersd very remote,

in the event that the contract is therefore no consideration of

terminaied or significantly whether to include & contingent

altared by either party. Rability in respsct of the penalty
clauyses conlained in tha
contract baeing applied has basn
made. This position will be
reviewsd sach year.

4 Material items of Income and Expense

The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Account summarises income and expense for
the reporting year. Within that the following material items are brought to the attention of the
reader fo provide more information about material transactions:

2014115 | Description | 2015M6
£000 | £000
Release of Waste Development Fund to Districts:

3,210  Knowsley o
89,268  Liverpool o
3,801 51 Helens o]
5938  Sefton 0
6,701 Wirral o
6,973 Release of Legal Provision to MVWHL 0
Dividend Payment from MWHL {4,000)

26,541 Landfill tax payments 21,204
18,231 Waste Management & Recycling contract payments 17,582
5709 Landlill contract payments 4,282
3,353 FCC Interim Contract 7,232
Vindor Interim Contract 1,863

3,167 Greater Manchester Interim Contract 3,405
82,802 51,668
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5 Adjustments between accounting basis and funding basis under
regulations

This Maote details the adjustmants that are made to the total Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure recognisad by the Authority in the year in accordance with proper accounting
practice to the resources thal are specified by statutory provisions as being available o the
Autharily to meet future capital and revenue expendilure

The General Fund balance is the sfatutory fund into which all the receipts of the Authority
are required to be paid and frorm which all liabilities of the authority are to be met except to
the extent that statutory rules might provide otherwise. These rules can also specify the
financial year in which liabifities and payments should impact on the General Fund balance,
which is not necessarily in accordance with proper accounting practice. The General Fund
balance therefore summanses the resources that the Authority iz statutorily empowered to
spend on its sarvices or on capital investment (or the deficit of resources the Authority is
required ta recover) at the end of the financial year,

Earmarked reserves are a subset of the General Fund and show those parts of the General
Fund balance that has been set aside for specific nominated purposes. The balance at the
year-end shows the resources that have yet to ba apphied for these purposes at the year
and.

The Capita! Receipts reserve holds the proceeds from the disposal of land or other assets,
which are restricted by statute from being used other than to fund new capital expenditure or
fo be el aside to finance historic capital expenditure.
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201616

Adjustmants involving the Capital Adjustmeont
Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditura
Statement:

Charges for depreciation and imparmant of non
current assats:

Revaluation iosses on Property Plant anhd
Equipmeant

Insartion of items not debited or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expondifure
Statomani:

Statutory Pravision for the Financing of Capital
Inpverstment

Capital expendilure charged agains! the Geneml
Fund batance

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts
Reaserve:

Transfer of cash sale procesds cradiied as part of
the gainfloss on disposal o the Comprehensiva
income and Expenditure Siatemant

Use of the Capital Receipts Resere (o finance new
caplital expenditure

Adjusiments involving the Penslons Rosarvo:

Reversal of iems melafing to rebirement banefits
debited or credited io the Comprahensive Income
and Expenditure Staiement (see Note 30)

Emplover's penskons coninbotions and direcl
paymanis o pensioners payabe in the year

Adjusiment involving the Accumulating
Compensated Absences Adjustment Accoumnt

Adjustments in netabon fo Shor-term compensabed
abaences

Total Adjustments
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Usable
Reserves
Genaral
Find
Balance

£000

Heceipis
Resarvo

Movemani
Capital In

Linusable
Resorves

E£000 E£000

(1,178 1,179
(95} a5
1,318 (1,318)
0

(373} 373
152 (152}

26 (26)
(151) ] 181

MRWA)
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2014/15 (Comparative year)

Adjustments involving the Capital
Adjustment Account:

Reversal of items debited or credited (o the
Comprehansive Income and Expenditure
Statement:

Charges for depreciation and impairment of
non currént assets

Revaluation losses on Property Plant and
Equipment

Insertion of items not debited or credited 1o
the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:

Statutery Provision for the Financing of Capital
Investment

Capital expendilura charged against the
General Fund balance

Adjustments involving the Capital Receipts
Reserve:

Transfer of cash sale proceeds credilad as par
of the gain/loss on disposal to the
Comprehensive Income and Expendilure
Statement

Use of the Capilal Receipts Reserve 1o finance
new capital expenditure

Adjustments invoelving the Pensions
Reserve:

Reversal of items relating to retirement
benefils debiled or credited to the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditura
Statement (see Note 32)

Employer's pensions contnbutions and direct
payments to pensioners payable in the year

Adjustment involving the Accumulating
Compensated Absences Adjustment
Account

Adjustments in relation o Short-term
compensated absences

Total Adjustments

Usable Resaerves Movaemant
General Capital in
Fund Receipls Unuzakble

Balance Reserve Reservos

EQOQ EDDO £000

(1,081) 0 1,081
0 (¥ 0
1,484 {(1,484)
0 0

3 (3
3 (3)
(328} 328
508 (509)
0 0
586 0 (588)
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6 Transfers to | from Earmarked Reserves

This Note sets out the amounts set aside from the General Fund balance in earmarked
reserves o provide financing for fulure expenditure plans and the amount of earmarked
resarves used lo meet General Fund expenditure in 2015/18. The Authority has used the
following reserves:

= Waste Development Fund to contribute to supporting the joint waste strategy
objectives through constituent district councils. In 2014-15 this balance was
disbursed to the constituent councils under the provisions of an inter-Authanty
agreement.

= Capital Reserve - to provide a contribution to the financial cost of acguiring a site or
sites for the new residual waste contract facilities.

e Tranater Trarmines Hatanoe as o
am A1 1 31 Mamh

Ajarid BOTd Elp]

I Dhiat

[ i) clog

Earmarked Reserve 0 3 (3) 0 0 0 1]
Sinking Fund 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Wasta Development

Fund 28,938 0 (28.838) 0 0 0 0
Capital Reserve 4,258 0 (74) 4,184 0 (1,752} 2432
Total Earmarked S .

Reserves 33196 '3 (20,015) 4,184 0 (1.752) 2,432

7 Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

The Consolidaled Income and Expenditure Statement includes an item of ‘Financing and
Investmeant Income and Expenditure’, this Note provides addilional details of that amount:

2014115 | | 201516
£000 | £000
2110 Interest payable and similar charges 2,037
(41) Met interest on the defined banafil liabilily/lassel) a3
{(160) Interest receivable and similar income (9,823)
1,809 Total (3,413)

GnD

n [JTEE]
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Interest payable and similar charges

2014/18 201518
E000 E000
1,040 Loan Interest 1,076

887 Service concession Interest B29
183 Other interast - MRDF 132
2,110 2,037

Interest and Investment Income

2014/15 201516
£000 £000
{(160) Bank interest 71

0 Loans 0
Other |nvestment income {5,752)
(160) (5,823)

8 Levy Income

The Authority is funded by a Levy on the five Merseyside District councils. The levy
each District pays to the Authonty i= agreed at the start of the year.

Levies received from member authorities during the year were as follows:

2014116 201616
EDOn EQOD
71,394 Knowsley 076
22,694 Liverpool 22,384
8217 StHelens 8,140
12,201 Sefton 12,461
15,085 Wimral 15,531

65,591 65,591
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8 Property, plant and equipment

This Note provides further information about the Property. Plant and Equipment included on
the Balance shast

Movemans in
N E-VE Property, Plant & Eqguipmant (PPAE) i "
Lmnd Balitdmigy ighigime L 18  TOTAL

000 EDol

Cout or Vahantion
Haiance o at § Api e ]
2015 11,178 18,553 7.761 ol 31587 18250  NT.587

Addlibanm 1604 14 16862 A1 2,376
Revatiation i |

increasesideranses

o Aewalimbon

Ressne

2051 (1,788) 1,183 447 14083
Detat Movarnands in o
Cost ar Vielustan

Balance an at 31 11,261 : ; e
March 7018 23028 6007 1 dogzz 1497 40827

:Jupml-unn and
m
gnﬂ;‘:-.m ws it 1 Aprd Bl #07 1,162 0 609 1138 | 2808

Carmct over oharpe o
i opanEng balance

Depgreciation Chsngs o 1,078 arg 1.0T8
505 B3
iy Mowarmainds in BE 1. Y30y {1 B Tomn) 1. 8557
i [E8 ( A
Imparment

Balance a5 at 11 L
Mearch 2018 I ™

=
3
=1
3

Het Book Value
Balance & af 31 10,808

March 2016 E3A40 583 14
Balance g3 81 31 10,635 17 648 & 5 ]
arch 2015

3

E
+

508
34878 1604
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Iegisigin & IO T4/ 5

Frogmriy, Planl & Eguipment [FRSE)
L i BuiilTing

Coat or Yaluation
Balanoe as A1 1 April 2(14 "Mim 18,632 T.061
Sdditions T 10 o

rarse answ

g ¥
g
32

Fevaiuaiion

i s | demeases )

mecognessd in Revelomiion

Rinrraz ar 113 o o

Cebvar Movemenis in Cosl ar

imluation ] 15T} ] 1]
Balanca as al 31 March

2018 AT 18,653 T.TEe {0 8

iE

Deprecistion and

i

Baiance as AL 1 April 2374 533 abb fa1:1]
Deprecision Chame T 501 573
irmpaimmant inssearrvETealE

lo Sumplizs of Defot an the
Provisian of Senvicas

ara I 680
aTe .ot

i

£
o
o
=
k=1

(153 o R
Balanca as at 31 March
018

i}
(i}
a0

Mel Book Velue
Balence &3 al 31 March — ) =l
2018 10,638 A7 640 8,500 Ll
Batance as a1 37 March
2014 10,598 18,005 772

fam 2T

i
g
;

3T LR R

Valuation

Property plant and equipment are revalued on a three year cycle in accordance with RICS
guidance. All assets were revalued at 31 March 2018 by the Authority's valuer, Mr Bernard
White (MRICS) of Kier Services The accounting policies provide further information an
revaluation and depreciation policies

The significant assumptions applied in estimating the fair values are

= the Authonty has good title 1o the propeary and that thay are not subject to any
unusual or onerous restrichons;
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« no delaterious or hazardous materials nor technigues have besn used in the
canstruction of the property from pasl or present uses

« thers are no environmental factors which would cause the valuation to alter,

The Autharity has a relatively small asset base so revalues its assets periodically, currently
on a three year cycle, rather than via a rolling revaluation programme. In between the
periodic valuations the Authority takes note of general advice from its own in-house asseat
management team as advised in general terms by the professional valuer engaged under
the terms of the service level agreement about whether additional valuations are necessary
and whether the carrying values of the Authority's assets are likely to remain materially
Sccurate.

Capital Commitments

On 23 December 2013 the Authaority entered into & 30 year service concession contract with
Sembcorp UK Limited (S5UK) to construct and then operatée an energy from waste plant

The total value of the contract (i.e. construction and then cperation over the 30 year term of
the contract) is expected to be £1.4bn with the Inibal construction phase of the conlract,
valued at £396m, due {o be compleled for commissioning by 31 October 2016

The Authonty has no other contractual commitments as at 31 March 2016, Howaver, the
Authority's capital programme sets out plans for capital expenditure of up to £480k for the
period up to and including 2017/18.

Impairment losses

During 2015/16, the Authority recognised an impairment loss of £7 000 In relation to its
closed landfill sites (E101.000 in 2015/16, in relation 1o its closed landfill sites and HWRC
minor works). The Authority incurred capital expenditure on the sites bul the nature of the
long-term liability associated with the sites means that the expenditure does not add value to
the sites 50 has been iImpaired, The recoverable amount of the sites has been reduced to
their value in use and the impairment loss charged to the Waste Disposal costs centre within
the Environmental and Regulatory Services lina in the Comprehensive Incomea and
Expenditure Statement The Authority's valuer has adwvised the value in use of the sites is
such that they could only be disposed of a nominal value because of the long-term labilities
that would be retained by the Authority under environmeantal legistation.

@D
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10 Financial Instruments

Carrying amount of financial assets and liabilities

2014/15 2015716
Current Long-lterm Current Long-term
ED00 EQOD EQOO0 EDOO
Current assets
12 556 0 Loans and recajvablas 8.879 0
- ~ Total included in current e |
12,556 ‘0 assets 8,979 0
Liabilities
Financial liabilities at
(14,475)  (30,664) amortised cost (12,764)  (20,683)
(14,475) {30,664) Total included in liabilities (12,764) (29,693)

Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

Financial liabilihes, financial assets represented by loans and receivables and long-term
dabtors and creditors are camed in the Balance Shest at amortised cost. Their fair value
can be assessed by calculating the present value of the cash flows that will take place over
the remaining term of the instruments, using the following assumptions:

= The fair value of trade receivables (debiors) and payables (creditors) are assumed to
be the invoiced or billed amount;

« For all PWLB loans the interast rate used for the purpose of calculating the fair value
is taken to be the rate available for new loans within the relevant banding at 31
March 2016,

« For the Authority's LOBO, the inferest rate is the rate quofed and provided by Capita;
and

= Mo early repayment is recognised
The fair values calculated are as follows:

The Authority's financial assets are predominantly loans and receivables consisting
principally of trade debtors and cash (bank) deposits held sither by the Authority or by St
Helens council on behalf of the Authority. These assets are initially valued at fair value and
held on the Balance Sheet at amortised cost. The amortised cost is calculated using the
effective Interes! rate which Is the rate which exactly discounts the forecast cashfiows of the
instrument over its expecied life to its carrying amount. For most short-term assets (e.g.
trade debtors) the carrying value is deemed to be the invoiced amount.

The Authority does nol have any investments required to be classed as either Available for
Sale or Fair Value through Profit and Loss.
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The fair value of the Authority's financial liabilities is more for its PWLB loans than the
carrying amount because the Authority's porifolio of PWLB loans includes a number of fixed
rate loans where the inferest rates payable are higher than the rates availabie for similar
loans at the Balance sheet date. The difference represents the opportunity cost to the
Autharnty of continuing to hold relatively high interest debl compared with borrowing at
current (lower) Interest rates.

2014145 2018186
Carrying Carrying
Valug Falr valug I Value  Failr valuo
£000 EQOQ EQ0D £004a
Debiors
12,_555 12 556 Loans and receivables E,ET-’_E E_,E?E
12 581 BEEE. Total noluded kn i 970 e
Borrowings
Financial Habilities at
{17.044) (23,851) amortised cost (17.044) {24.051)
Total included In :
(17,044) (23,851) borrowings (17.044) (24,051)
Other Long Temmn Liabilities
[13,5_7(:-] 51?115&} Service concession labilities _{12.549} :1?,&1 5)
(30,654)  (41,007) Total long term liabilities (29,893)  (41,066)
Creditors
Financial iabilities at
tH,dTﬁ} {14,515} amortised cost {1_-'!,?-&-1}_ {12,]"’6-.1}
(14,476)  (14,516) Total creditors (12.764) (12,764
(45,129) (65,523) Total liabilities (42,457)  (53,830)
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Long-term borrowing

The Authority barrows 1o finance its expendilure on capital assets. The Long Term barrowing
is analysed as follows

Balance at Balance at
31 March 31 March
2015 2016
ED0Os £000s
Analysis by type
(15,044) Public Works Loans Board (15,044)
(2,000 Market Loan (LOBO) (2.000)
(17,044) (17.044)
Analysis by maturity
0 1-2years (214)
(214) 2-5 years 0
0 5-10 years {(300)
(18.830) More than 10 years (18.530)
{17,044) (17,044)

11 Nature and Extent of Risks Arising from Financial Instruments
The Authonty's activities expose it to a vanety of financial risks:

« credit nsk - the possibility that other parties might fail to pay amounts due to the
Authority,

o [liquidity risk — the possibility that the Authority might not have funds available to meeat
fis commitmeants to make payments; and

=« market risk — the possibility that financial loss might arise for the Authority as a resull
of changes in such measures as interest rates and stock market movements.

The Authority's overall risk management programme foocuses on the unpradiclability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the resources available
to fund services. Risk management is the responsibility of the Treasurer, with day-to-day
management undertaken by 5t Helens Councit on behalf of the Authority. S5t Helens Council
provides written principles for overall nsk management, as well as written policies covenng
specific areas, such as interest rate nek, credi risk and the investment of surplus cash,

Credit risk
Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and financial institutions.

The Authority does not have significant credit risk exposure to customers as if rarely supplies
noods and services an cradit
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Credit risk on deposits is minimised by using St Helens Council to manage day to day
treasury management in line with the Council's own Treasury Management Pelicy, The
maxmum exposurg to credit nsk is that 51 Helens Council fail repay monies invested with it
by the Authority, Howeaver given that the Council is a tax-backed organisation, this is an
axtramely unlikely scanario

Liquidity risk

The Authority refies on the service level agreement with St Helens Council o provide a
comprehensive cash flow management system that seeks to ensure that cash is avallable as
neaded. If unexpectad movements happen, the Authorily has ready access to borrowings
from the money markals and the Public Works Loans Board. There is no significant risk that
it will be unable to raise finance to meet its commitments under financial instruments.
Instead. the risk is that the Authority will be bound to replenish a significant proportion of its
borrowings at a time of unfavourable interest rates. The Authority sets limits on the
proportion of its fixed rate borrowing during specified periods. The strategy is 1o ensure that
no more than 60% of loans are due lo mature within any rolling three-year period through a
combination of careful planning of new loans taken out and (where it |s economic to do s50)
making early repayments

Analyses of the maturity of financial kabiliies are disciosed al Notes 10 and 33
All trade and other payables are due lo be paid in less than one year,
Interest rate risk

The Authority 1s exposed to risk in terms of its exposure to interast rate movements on its
borrowings and investments. Movements in interest rates have a complex impact on the
Authority. For instance, a nse in interest rates would have the following effects:

* Dborrowings at variabie rates - the interest expense charged to the Surplus or Daficit
on the Provision of Servicas will rise;

* borrowings al fixed rates - the fair value of the liabilities borrowings will fall;

»  nvestments al variable rates — the interest income credited to the Surplus or Deficit
an the Provision of Services will rise, and

s [nvestments at fived rates = the fair value of the asseats will fall

Borrowings are not carmed at fair value, so nominal gains and losses on fixed rate
borrowings would not impact on the Surplus of Deficit on the Provision of Services or Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. However, changes in interest payable and
receivable on variable rate borrowings and investments will be posted to the Surplus or
Deficit on the Provision of Senvices and affect the General Fund Balance.

The Authority has a number of strategies for managing interest rate risk. At present the aim
is to keep a minimum of its borrowings in vanable rate loans. During penods of faliing

D

W B e d Wi 0 BT

Page | 43



interest rates, and where economic circumstances make it favourable, fixed rate loans may
be repaid early to limit exposure to losses.

Price risk

The Authority does not invest in equily shares. The Authority has a 100% sharehalding in
Mersey Waste Holdings Lid and a 50% stake in Bidston Methane Lid. Neither company is
traded in an active market and the Authority has no plans to trade aither stake.

Foreign exchange risk

The Authority has no financial assets or liabilites denominated in foreign currencies and thus
has no exposure to loss arising from movements in exchange rates.

12 Investments

The Authority holds a long-term investment in Mersey Waste Holdings Limited, The company is
incorporated under the terms of the Companies Acts. The Authority is the principal shareholder in the
company and this is valued at its current net asset value £5.049m

13  Inventory

20161

201415 8
£000 E£000

21 Balance b/f 28

28 Purchases of promotional material 22

{(21) Recognised as an expense In the year ;_:‘!E]

29 Balance c/f 22

14  Short term debtors

2014115 2015/16
EDOD EG00
788 Other Local Authaorities 635

0 Public Corporations and Trading Funds 557

501 Bodies External to General Government 272

—rrra

1,299 Total 1,464
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16  Cash and cash equivalents
The balance of cash and cash equivalents comprises:

{a) cash held by the Autharity, and

{b) cash held on behalf of the Authonty by St Helens MBC.

201418 201616
E000 £000
11,256 Cash equivalents 7,513
1 Cash held by the Authority 1
11,267 Total 7.514

16 Short term creditors

207415 2018018
EDGQ EDOD
(£.318) Central Government Bodies (356)
0 Other Local Authorties (1.118)

0 'NHS Bodies 0

0 Public Corporations and Trading Funds 0
{10,014) Bodies Extamal to Genaral Government {11,289)
Other craditors 0

(12,332) Total Short Term Creditors (12,764)

17 Provisions

The provisions al the balance sheel date are required to be split between those that are
likely to be payable within twelve months, recognised in the Balance Sheet as current
liabilities, and those payable after twelve months from the balance sheet date, recognised as
long term labilities. The Authority holds provisions for the following purposes

Closad landill siles

The Authority established the ciosed landfill provision in 2013/14 to recognise the need to
prowvede for the potential future costs of maintaining Closed Landfill sites across Merseyside
for which the Authority is responsible. There will be a gradual reduction to the amounts that
will be spent on closed land fill sites year on year as they begin to stabilise and settle

requiring less maintenance.
Qi)
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Other provisions

Other provisions include:

= an obligation to the Mersey Waste Holdings Lid under a back to back funding
arrangemenl for a payment made by the Company Lo the Citrus Pension Fund. Ta
date the Company has not sought payment to discharge the obligation; and

The following Note analyses the movement in those categories of provisions.

Current provisions
Outstanding legal cases
Other provisions

Closed landfill sites

Long-term provisions
Outstanding legal cases
Othar provisions

Closed landfill sites

Current provisions
Cutstanding legal cases
Other provisions

Othar provisions

Long-term provisions
Outstanding legal cases

Other provisions
Closad landhill sites

Balanco

s at 1

Incroase
]
provision
during

Utilised
during

Balance as
at 31
March 2016

(0] 0 0 o
(118) (286) 119 (28)
[2?21 {?21?] 235 (254)
(391) (243) 354 (280)
1] 0 0 0
{BBS5) 0 ) (886)
{4,313) 52 1] (4,261)
(5,198) 52 o (5,146)
Increase
in
Balanta provision Utilisad Balance as
an At 1 during during at 31
April 2014 March 2015
£000 £000 E00D £000
0 0 1] a
[(167) (T1) 118 {119)
(242) {EE-EI} 226 (272)
(408) (327) 345 (391)
(6,973) 0 6,073 o
(885) 0 Q {885)
(10,538) 8223 0 (4,313)
{18,384) 6,223 6,973 (5,198)
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18 Unusable reserves

J0INE J103AME

E000 | £000

28038 Capital Adjustment Account 25778

(7.427) Revaluation Resarve {11,280)

4 232 Pensions Resarve 3,940
Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment

21 Account | 17

24,865 Total Unusable Reserves 18,445

Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences ansing from the different
arrangements for accounting for the consumplion of non-current assets and for financing the
acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assels under statutory provisions. The
Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation,
impairment losses and amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement (with reconciling postings from the Revaluahion Resarve to convert
fair value figures to a histoncal cost basis). The Account is credited with the amounts set
aside by the Authorty as finance for the costs of acquisition, construction and enhancement
The Account contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment
bafore 1 Apnl 2007, the date that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains

Note 5 provides details of the source of all the transactions posted to the Account, apart from
those involving the Revaluation Resarva.

2014/15 | 201516
£000 | £000
34,599 Balance at 1 April 28,039
(63) Opening Balance Adjustment 20
345368 Adjusted Opening Balance 28,089

Reversal of items relating to capital expenditure
debited or credited to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement:
1,081 Charges for depreciation and impairment of non current 1,168
assels

Met written out amaunt of the cost of non current
1,081 assets consumed in the year {1,168)

Capital financing applied in the year:
@D
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{4) Use of the Capital Receipls Reserve lo finance new capial 0

expenditure
(1,484) Statulory provision for the financing of capital investment {1,318)
charged against the General Fund balance
(5,893) Reduction in Cloged Landfill Sie Provision (38)
(124) Other movements charged to the CAA (340)
(73) Capital expenditure charged against the General Fund {1,763)
balance
e A1ET8) ___(3.449)
28,038 Balance at 31 March 25,778

Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Authority ansing from increases in
the valua of its Property, Flant and Equipmeant.

« Revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
= LUsed in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation,
of
s [Disposed of and the gains are realised
The Reserve contains only revaluation gans accumulated since 1 April 2007, the date that
the Reserve was created, Accumulated gains arising bafore that date are consolidatad into
the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

2014115 | 201818
EDO0D | EQDD
(7,464) Balance at1 April (7.427)
63 Restatement o
{7.401) Restated opening balance (7,427)

0 Upward revaluation of assets

Downward revaluation of assets and impairment losses not
{150) charged to the Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services {3,891)
Differance between fair value depreciation and histoncal
124 cost depreciation 128
{7.427) Balance at 31 March 11,290)
The opeming balance in 2014715 was restaled fo re-align the Revaluation Resarve wilh the underying
fixed assst registar
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Pensions Reserve

The Pensions Reserve absorbs the tming differences arising from the different
arrangements for accounting for post employment benefits and for funding benefits in
accordance with statutory provizsions. The Authority accounts for post employment benefits
in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as the benefits are earned by
employees accruing years of service, updating the liabilities recognised to reflect infiafion,
changing assumptions and investmeant returns on any resources set aside {o meat the cosls.
However, stalutory arrangements require benefits eamed to be financed as the Authority
makes employer's contrbutions to pension funds or eventually pays any pensions for which
It is directly responsible. The debit balance on the Pensions Reserve therefore shows a
substantial shortfall in the benefits eamed by past and current employees and the resources
the Authonity has set aside to meet them. The statutory arrangements will ensure that
funding will have been sef aside by the time the benefits come to be paid,

2014115 | | 20188

£000 | £000

3,154 Balance at 1 April

4,232

1,268 Remeasurements of the net defined benafit liabilty/azset (513)
329 Reversal of tems relating to retirement benefits deblted or 373

credited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement

(508} Employer's pension contributions and direct payments to (152)
pensionars payable in the year

4,232 Balance at 31 March 3,940

(MRWA
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Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulating Compensated Absences Adjustment Account absorbs the differences that
would otherwise anse on the General Fund Balance from accruing for compensated
absences eamed bul not taken in the year e.g annual leave enfitlement carmed forward at
31 March. Statutory arrangements require that the impact on the General Fund Balance Is
neutrafisad by transfers to or from the Account,

201415
2015/16
£000 EDDD
21 Balance at 1 April 21
{21) Settlement or cancellation of accrual made at the end of (21)
the praceding year
21  Amounts accrued at the end of the current year 17

Amount by which officer remuneration charged to the

Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement on

an accruals basis is different from remuneration

chargeable in the year in accordance with statutory

redquiremants

‘21 Balance at 31 March 17

18  Cash flow statement - operating activities

ltems included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services that are investing and
financing activities:

201415
£000

201516

| E0O0

2,110 Interast Payabie 2,037
(41) Met interest on the defined benefit fiability/(assat) 373
(160) Interesi Receivable {(T1)

———yyler

1,909 2,33




Statement of Accounts 2015/ME

The Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services has been adjusted for the following
non-cash movemeants.

2014115 Z018M8
£000 E00D
1,062 Depraciation (1,527)
0 Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale {1,084}
deracognilions)
1.217 Increasaf{Decreasa) in credilors 432
{8) (Increase)/Decrease In inventory 7
346 (Increase)/Decreasa in debtors (165)
{7.021) Movemeant in provisions (54)
1,078 Movemenl in pension llability (282)
852 Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions
(2,674) (2,683)

The Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services has been adjusted for the following
items that are investing and financing activities;

201415 201516
£000 | £000
0 Proceads from short-term (not considered to be cash {4,000}

equivalants) and long-term investments (includes
investments in associates, jolnl ventures and subsidiaries)

(4] Procesds from the sale of property, plant and equipment 0
4 (4,000)

20  Cash flow statement — investing activities

2014116 2016/16
£000 . £000

77 Purchase of PPAE and investment property 1.752

4 Proceads from the sale of PP&E and investment property 0

226 Other outflows from Invasting Activibes 1]

307 Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 1.752
PO E LS FOTIEEE b ST LU T
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21  Cash flow statement - financing activities

2014/15 | 2015/16
£000 EQOD
(881) Cash payments for the reduction of the outstanding liability (861)

redating to a finance lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI

contracis

201 Interest recenvable 71
(2,110) Interest paid (2.037)
ﬂ Repayment of Short and Long Term Bormowing (2,143)
{6,13B) Net Cash flows from Financing Activities (6,070)

22  Amounts reported for resource allocation decisions

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement is that specified by the Best Value Accounting Code of
Practice. However, decisions about resource aliocation are taken by the Authority on the
basis of budget reports analysed across the Authority's activity, These reports are prepared
on a different basis from the accounting policies used in the financial statements. In
particular;

= No charges are made for capital expenditure {whereas depreciation, revaluation and
impairment losses are charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement)

= The cost of retirement benefits 1s based on cash flows (payment of employer's
pension contributions) rather than current cost of service of benefits accrued in tha
year

* Expenddure on some support services iz budgeted for centrally and not charged to
services

The income and expenditure of the Authonty's principal services recorded in the budget
reports for the year |s as follows.
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Eatablish- "Waste Faciliies Strategy Procure-

2015M6 ment  Contracls ment

£000 £000 £000 £000 £000

Fess, charges & ather (165) (2,221) (4,072)

service income

Levy 0 0 0 0 0 (85591) (86591)

Total Income (165) (2.221) 0 0 0 (69,663) (72,048)
0 0 ] o (1] 0

Employee expenses 1,304 0 1] ] 0 0 1,304

Other service expenses 536 67,926 2187 381 0 1,221 72,250

Support service o o 0 o 0 o (1]

recharges

Total Expenditure 1,839 67,926 2,187 381 0 1.221 73,554

Not Exponditure Ters  wer0s  adm a0 @04 1508

* establishment ncludes commumcations; waste contracts includes fandfill allowances:
facilities includes closed landfill and rent, rales depreciation

Reconciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This raconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of services income and axpendilure
ralate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Incame and Expenditure Statement

201416 201618

£000 £Q00

52156 Net expandifure in the Sernca Analysis 1,906

27650 Sarvices and Support not in Analysis [768)

(5,803) Amounts in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (4,804)
Staterment not reported to managament in the Analysis

0 Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the 0

Comprehensive Income and Expeanditure Statemant

Cost of Services in Comprehensive Income and
27,062 Expenditure Statement (4,087)

@D
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Reconciliation to subjective analysis

The following reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of service income and
expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.
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23 Officer remuneration

The Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011 require lecal authorities (o disclose the
number of employees whaose remuneration was £50 000 or more in the financial year,
expresssd in bands of £5,000 Other than the senior officers whose remuneration is shown
separately balow at the foot of this Note, there were no other officers employed during the
year whose remuneration exceeded £50 000 (none in 2013714).

Exit packages and termination benefits

The numbers of exit packages with total cost per band and total cost of the
compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below.

Totsl numbar of Total cost of axll
oxit pachages By packages in
cowl bard pach band

E=xit packapn coat B Muriber of
{imclucing spoctal pOMmpulsorg
Py e ) moundansies

Wumber of ofhe
deparnes agreosd

nKM8 2014M8 N1EMA  B014MS 201414 2014118 288 21418

£0-£20,000 0 o 0 1 1 ED £t1.802
£20,001—£40,000 ] 0 0 0 0 o £ £0
£40,001-£60,000 o 0 o 1 o 1 ED E58.713
£60,001-£80,000 0 I i o g 0 £ £0.
e o 0 © 2 0 2 €0 E70,595

The Accounts and Audit Regulations 2015 require the separate disclosure by name
of individual remuneration detalls for senior local government employees eaming
over £150,000, and for all other 'senior’ employees for each financial year by post
title.

Senior officers are individuals earning over £150,000 per year, or individuals whose
salary is more than £50,000 per year (pro-rata) and hold defined 'senior’ positions. In
the case of the Authority this comprises the Chief Executive and members of the
Corporate Management Team.

D
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Chief Executive

Director of
Strategy and
Resources (a)

Director of
Operations

Director of
Finance

Director
Governance and
Performance (b)

Total

2015M18
2014115

2015/16
2014/15

2016/18
2014115

2015M16
2014115

2016016

2014115

201516
2014115

Salary,
Foes and

Allowances

82,797

Exponses
and
Allowances

Panaion
Contribution

1,470 10,681

B1.477 3581 10,524
0 0 0 0
69,837 o 169 70,106
66,822 2,210 8,620 77,652
85,736 1,150 8,480 77,366
66,822 1,468 8620 76810
65,732 1,088 8479 76,199
51,192 1,406 7,120 59,717
46,032 2 682 6,446 55460
262,473 8,130 34,367 304,971
282 882 8719 27,652 318,253

(a) Part year post. Pastholder feff the Authanly on 7 Aprid 2014,

{h) Part year post reporfed. Postholder was appointed an 15 Seplember 2014, The
remuneration includes the period before being appoinfed.
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24  External audit costs
The analysis of audil Tees paid to the axternal auditor is shown below:

~ J
2014/158 2015/16

£000 £000

38 Fees payable o Grant Thornlon with regard to external 28
audit services carried out by the appointed auditor for the

year
11 Feas payable to Grant Thornton for additional resources

(3) Rebate received from Audit Commission for prior years
from efficient management of Commission's closure

A7 20

25 Grant income

The Authority credited the following granis to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement in 2015/18.

£000 EQDOD

15 Woaste Co Eco Smarl Spend 5
Cradiled to Services

(4) Waste Eco Smart (13}

" ()

The Waste Ecosman Granl has yel to be fully recognised as income as there are
conditions attaching that will require the money to be refunded to the giver. The
balance at the year-end Is as follows;

2014/18 20158/186
EQOO EDOD
Current Liabilities

{18) Revenue grants received In advance - Waste Eco Smart (8)

@D
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26  Related parties

The Authority is required to disclose material transactions with related parties - bodies or
individuals - that have the potential to control or influence the Authority or to be controlled ar
influenced by the Authonty. Disclosure of these transactions allows readers to assess the
extent to which the Authority might have been constrained in its ability to operate
independently or might have secured the ability to limit another parly's ability to bargain
freely with the Authority.

Central government

Central government has effective control over the general operations of the Authority— il is
responsible for providing the statutory framework within which the Authority operates. Details
of transactions with Government Departments are set out in the MNotes relating to the Cash
Flow Statement.

Members

Members of the Authority have direct control over the Authority's financial and operating
poficies although no Members' allowances are payable.

Councillors Concepcion, Robertson-Colling and Cluskey are Members of the Authonty and
are also Direciors of Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd. Councillors S Williams and | Willlams are
Members of the Authority are Directors of Bidston Methane Ltd. They take no part at the
Authority meatings about the bodies that they serve on.

Councillor Robertson-Caollins is also invalved in the community group known as the Granby
Toxteth Development Trust, which dunng 2014-15 received a grant of £10,000 from the
Authority's Community Fund.

Officers

Threa officars (Carl Beer, Alex Murray and Peter Willlams) are also Directors of Marsay
Waste Holdings Ltd and the company's two subsidiary companies (detail provided
below) They take no pan at the Authority meetings regarding the bodies that they serve on
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Other Public Bodies

As part of the discharge of its waste disposal functions within the Merseyside area, the
Authonty makes a number of payments covering rent, business rates and recycling
paymenis to other local authorties in the area, which are summarized balow,

2014115 Payments 2015/186
EQOOD
1,764 Halton 211
1,250 Knowsley 614
2727 Liverpool 1,332
1,458 St Helens 1,305
4 884 Befion 2,138
3,008 Wirral 848

15,103 8,450

Entities Controlled or Significantly Influenced by the Authority
Mersey Waste Holdings Limiled (MWHL)

This company Is a former Local Autherity Waste Disposal Company (LAWDC), now used by
the Authonty solely to access the remaining landfill contracts. The pension liabilities of
former employees are also managed through the company. For 2015/18 the company's
results showed a deficit of £0.158m (E£0.177m in 2014/15) and net assets of £5.041m at 31
March 2016. (E8.418m at 31 March 2015).

The Authority controls MWHL through its ownership of 100% of issued share capital MWHL
owns lwo subsidiary companies, Mersay Waste Limited and MWH Associates Limited, over
which the Authority also exercises effective control as a result of its relationship with Mersey
Waste Holdings Limited

The Authority made payments of £26.223m to MWHL during the year (£29 448m in
2014/15)

Bidston Methane Limited

Bidston Methane Limited is a joint venture established to manage gas production and
electricty generation from closed tandfill sites which remain the responsibifity of the
Authority. The joint venture is with Infinis Energy plc and the Authority controls Bidsion
Methane through its ownership of 50% of the issued share capital which iz held at cost. The
most up to date audited financial information shows a profit of £0.086m for 2014/15
(E0.062m profit for 201314) and net liabiliies of £0.406m al 31 March 2015 (E0.502m at 31

March 2014)
@D
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There were no transactions with Bidston Methane Lid during the year (nil in 2014/15).

27  Capital Expenditure and Financing

The total amount of capital expenditure incurred in the year is shown in the table below
{including the value of assets acquired under finance leases and the Waste Managemen!
and Recycling service concession coniract), together with the resources thal have been
used lo finance it. Where capital expenditure is to be financed in fulure years by charges to
revenue as assels are used by the Authority, the expenditure results in an increase in the
Capital Financing Requirement (CFR), a measure of the capital expenditure incurred
histarically by the Authority that has yet to be financed, The CFR is analysed in the second
parl of this Nate.

EQDD EOOO
Capital expenditure incurred in the year
77 Property, Plant and Eguipment 1,753
226 Closad [andfill sites 215
303 1,968
Financing
0 Grants and confributions receivable in relation to capital ]
expenditure incurred in the year
(269) Direct revenue contributions (1,968)
{(4) Capital receipts 0
0 Increase in underlying borrowing requirement )
0 Supportad borrowing approvals 0
0 Unsupported borrowing for the year 0
Sources of finance
0 Supported borrowing approvals 0
0 Unsupported borrowing 0

0 Increase in Capital Financing Requirement relating to 0
new capital investment

Explanation of movemants in the Capital Financing 2015/16
Requirement in the year

EDOD £000
28,284 Opening Capital Financing Requirement 55,804
20 004 Restatement 1]

57,288 Restated opening Capital Financing Requirement EE.HI.H'

201415
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0 Decrease in Capital Financing Requirement relating lo {5,138)
new capital investment
0 Capital Receipts set aside for repayment of debt 0
(1.484) Charges to revenue for Minimum Revenue Provision (1,318)
" 85804 Closing Capital Financing Requirement 49,348

28 Leases
Authority as lessor — operating leases
The Authority leases out properly, plant and equipment for the following purposes:

« environment and planning - use of closed landfill sites
* household waste recycling centres

However thess are al peppercorn rent so not included in this Mot
Authority as lessee - oparating leases

The Authority has acquired 14 assets by entering into operating leases with typical lives of
between 2 years and 30 years.

The minimum lease payments due under non-cancellable operating leases in future years
are:

2014156 201516

£000 £000

38 No later than one year 148
135 Later than one year and not [ater than five years 575
780 Later than five years 873
953 1,694

The expenditure charged to services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement during the year relating to these leases was:

D
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2014/15 2015/18
Land and

Land

and
bulldings bulldings

EDOO EOOO
38 Minimum lease payments

38 148

Mo sub-lease paymenis or contingent rent payments were made or recelved. No sublease
income is expected as all assets held under operating lease agreements are used
exclusively by the Authorily.

29  Service concessions
Waste Management and Recycling Contract

2015/16 was the seventh year of a 20 year Waste Management and Recycling Contract with
Veolia. Under the contract Veolia operate the Authority's existing waste facilities and fs
responsible for building, maintain and operating the new Gillmoss Material Recycling Facility
(MRF} which came Into operation in December 2011,

The Contract specifies the minimum standards for the services to be provided by the
contractor, Vieolia, with deductions from the fee payable if facilities are unavailable or
performance Is befow the standards set out. The contractor took on the obligation to
construct and maintain the Gillmoss MRF fo a minimum acceptable condition and to procure
the plant and equipment needed to operate the MRF. The building, plant and equipment
installed will transfer to the Authority at the end of the contract peried for nil consideration.

The Authority has rights to terminate the contract if it compensates the contractor in full for
costs incurred and future profits that would have been generated over the remaining term of
the contract

Property, plant and equipment

The assets used to provide services at the Matenals Recycling Facility are recognised on the
Authority's Balance Sheet. Movemeants in their value aver the year are detailed in the
analysis of the movement on the Property, Plant and Equipment al Naole 10,

Payments

The Authority makes an agreed payment each year which is increased each year by infialion
and can be reduced if the contractor fails to meet availabiiity and performance standards in
any year but which 5 otherwise fixed Paymaenis ramaining lo be made under the service
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concession contract at 31 March 2015 (excluding any estimation of inflation and
availability/performance deductions) are as follows

Reimburse-
Total at mant of Toial ot
311032015 or Capital  'MIOTOSl 50032016
Senicos
Expenditure

£000 EQOD E000 £000

Payment

Payable within 27,603 - 29,334
one year ~ .

117.694 Payable within 118,514 3,843 2496 124853
two to five years

164,446 Payable within 167,841 4,804 1804 174448
six to ten years:

153,496 Payable within 118,804 3,042 382 22228
eleven 1o fifteen i
yaars

0 Payable within o 0 0 i -
sixteen to twerty
Years
463,288 Total 432,762 12,650 5452 450,864

* the comparator figures have been restated to reflect the gross payments due to the
comfractor msfead of the nel payments

The contract payments have been calculated lo compensate the contractor for the fair value
of the senvices they provide, the capital expenditure incurred and interest payable on the
capital expenditure still to be reimbursed to the contractor. The liability outstanding to pay
the contracter for capital expenditure incurred is as follows:

2014115 20156M6

£000 E000

14,_5?1 Balance outstanding at start of year 13,610

(881) Paymenis during the year (961)

0  Capital expenditure incurred In the year Q

13,610 Balance outstanding at year-end 12,649
Analysed between:

{861) Payments due within 1 year (961)

(12 .64%) Long term liabilities (11,688}

(13.610) (12,648)
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30  Defined benefit pension schemes

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its officers, the Authority makes
coninbutions towards the cost of rebrement benefits. Although these benefitz will not actually
be payable until employees retire, the Authority has a commitmant to make the payments
(for those benefits) and to disclose them at the time that employees sam their fulura
entitlement

The Authority participates in the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) which is
administerad locally by Wirral Council (the Marseyside Pansion Fund), The LGPS is a
funded defined benefit scheme, maaning that the Autharity and employaes pay contribubons
into a fund, calculated at a level inlended lo balance the pension's liabilities with Investment
assets, The LGRS provides defined benefits with its benefit structure having been revised
recently by the Government. Members will have final salary benefits for service accrued prior
to 1 April 2014 with career average revalued eamings ("CARE") benefits accruing from this
date.

The Merseyside Pension Fund is operated under the regulatory framework for the Local
Government Pension Scheme. The govemnance of the scheme is the responsibility of the
Pensions Commitiee consisting of members from the five Merseyside authorities and one
meamber reprasanting other employing arganisations in the Fund. Folicy is determined in
accordance with the LGPS reguiations

The principal risks to the Authority relate to the impact of changes to longevity assumptions,
statutory changes to the scheme, structural changes to the scheme {eg large scale
withdrawals from the scheme), changes to inflation, bond yields and the perdormance of
equity investments held by the scheme. Marseyside Pension Fund has reported that the
principal risk to its funding position is the investment risk inherent in its predominantly equity
based stralegy. as aclual assel outperformance betwean successive valuations could
diverge from the averall 1 4% per annum assumead in the longer term
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Transactions relating to retirement benefits- CIES Charges

The Authority recognises the cost of retirement benefits in the reported cost of service when
they are eamed by empioyees, rather than when the benefits are eventually paid as
pensions

However, the charge we are required to make against the Levy is based on the cash
payable in the year, and the real cost of post-employmentiretirement benefits is reversed out
of the General Fund via the Movement on Reserves Statement. The following transactions
have been made in the Comprahensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the General
Fund balance via the Movement in Reserves Statemenl during the year

Lol

Government
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Pension Schame

Discrotionary
Banafits

Statement
201516 209415 Z2018ME 209415

£000 E0O00 £000 £000

Cost of services:

Service cosl compising:
Currant service cosl 2
Pasl sarvice cosl
(Gain)loss from settlemeants

Financing and Investiment Income and

Expenditure:

Met Interest expanse 128 111

209

I';'Itﬂ'f.'lg
L= = |
== = = =]
L= =

4]
D

Total post-employment benefits charged to 367 320 ] g
the Surplus of Deficit on the Provision of

Services

Other post-employment benefits charged fo the
Comprefensive Income and Expendifure
Slatemeni

Remeasurement of tha tha netl dafined banelit
liability comprising

Relurn on plan assels (excluding the amount 285 {808) Q 4]
included In the nal Interest expensa)

Actuarial gains and losses ansing on changes 0 0 0 0
in demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses ansing on changes (801) 2,046 {7) 18
in financial assumptions

Other D 0 0 0
Total post employment benefits charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statermment

(139) 1,560 (1) 27

D,
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Local
Govarnment

Discretionary

P ek SEcihs Benefits
Movement in Reserves Statemaent ension schame

2016116 20141165 3 £000
EQQD EDOO EQOO £000

Reversal of net charges made to the Surplus or (367) (320) (B) {9}
Deficit on the Provision of Services for post-
employment benefits in accordance with the
Code
Actual amount charged against the general
fund balance for pensions in the year:

Employers' contributions payable to scheme 134 480
Retirement benafits payable (0 pansioners 18 18
Net charge to the General Fund Summary (233) 170 12 10

Pension Assets and Liabilities recognised in the Balance Sheet

Local
Government
Pension Scheme

Discretionary
Banafits

201516 2014115 201516 201415

£000 £000 £000 EQO0

Present value of the defined obligation (14,738) (15,5632) (191) (210}
Fair value of plan asseis 109080 11,510 0 0
(3,749) (4,022) (191) (210)

Cither movemants in the lability {asset)

Net liability arising from the defined benefit ~ (3,749) (4,022)  (191)  (210)
obligation - g I

Reconciliation of movements in the fair value of scheme assets

Local
Governrment
Panslon Scheama

2016ME 201415 2018ME6 2014165
£000 EQOD E000 EQOD

Discrationary
Benefits

Opening fair value of scheme assets 11,510 10,085

Intarest on plan assets 358 455 0 0
Remeaasurameants (assels) (280) 81 0 0
Administration expenses {5) (5) 0 0
Employer contributions 134 450 18 18
Member contributions 72 7 0 o
Benefits/iransfers paid (700} (403 {18) :19_}_

Closing value of scheme assets 10,980 11,510 0 i
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities

Local
Govarnmont
Penslon Scheme
2015/M116 2014116 2096M6 2094/15
EQDD EDOD £000 E000

Discretionary
Benofits

Opening balance at 1 April (15,532) (13,037) {210) {202)
Currant service oost {230) {208) 1]
Interest cost (487) (568) (8) (8)
Membar contnbutions (72} (77} 0
Past service costs/(gains) 0 0 0
Remeasurements (liabifities) o o
Experisnce (gain)loss ] 0 D 0
(Gain)loss on financial assumplions 801  (2.048) T (18)
(Gain)loss an demographic assumptions o 0 0

8 19

Benafits/iransfers paid 790 403 1
Balance as at 31 March { : 181)  (210)
Local government pension scheme assets comprsed:

Fair value of schame assets

310316 2103156

£000 Ve £000
Equities - quoted 2377 22 2746 24
- unquotad 3,315 30 3467 ao
Bonds - quoted 1,745 16 1,997 17
- unquated 0
Property - guoted 45 o 38 0
- unguoted 834 B 813 8
Alternatives - quated 279 3 311 3
- unguotad 1,917 ir 1,600 15
Cash - guoted 378 3 348 3

10,080 100 11,510 100
Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an actuanal basis using the projected unit method, an
estimate of the pensions thal will be payable in the future years dependent on assumptions

about mortality rates, salary levels, etc.

b Borreeer WEsroms ¢ # e Sanamar
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Both the Local Government Pension Scheme and discretionary benefits liabilities have been
assessed by Mercer Human Resource Consulting Ltd, an independent firm of actuaries,
estimates for Merseyside Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the
scheme as at 1 April 2013.

The significant assumptions used by the actuary are set out below

Local Governmant Pension Scheme

201415 201516
Y Y
Mortality assumptions:
Longewity at 65 currént pensionars.
224 WMen 22.5
253 Women 254

Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:

248 Men 249

28.1 Women 28.2
Financial assumptions:

2.0 Rate of CPI inflation 20

3.5 Rate of Increasa in salaries 3.5

20 Rate of increase in pensions 2.0

3.2 Discount Rate a5

Impact on the Defined Benefit Obligation in the Scheme

The estimation of the defined benefit obligation is sensitive to the actuarial assumptions set
aut in the table above. The sensitivity analyses below have been determined basad on
reasonably possible changes to the assumptions occurning at the end of the reporting period
and assumes for each change that the assumption analyses changes while all other
assumptions remain constant.

For example, the longevity assumptions assume thal life expectancy increases or decreases
for men and women. In practice this is unlikely lo accur, and changes in some of the
assumptions may be interrelated.

The estimations in the sensitivity analysis have followed the accounting policies for tha
scheme, | & on an acluarial basis using the projected unit method. The methods and types
of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis below did nol change from those
used in the previous penod.
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Increasa In Decrease o

assumption assumption
£000 E£000

{309) Longevity (increase of one year) {(253)
{278) Rate of inflation (increase of 0,1%) (265)
(69) Rate of increase in salaries (increase of 19%) (BE)
274 Rate for discounting liabilites (increasa of 0.1%) 260

Impact on the Authority's cashflows

The objectives of the scheme are to keap employers’ contribubions at as constant a rate as
possible Merseyside Pension Fund has agreed a strategy with the scheme's actuary to
achieve a funding level of 100% over the next 149 years. Funding levels are monitored on an
annual basis. The next trienmal valuation |s due to be completed on 31 March 2016,

The schema will need lo take account of the national changes (o the schame under the
Public Pensions Services Acl 2013, Under the Act, the Local Governmenl Pension Scheme
in England and Wales and the other main existing public service schemes may not provide
benefits in relation to service after 31 March 2014 {or service after 31 March 2015 for other
main existing publbc service pension schemeas in England and Wales), The Acl provides for
scheme regulations to be made within a commaon framework, to establish new career
average revalued seamings schemes to pay pensions and other benefits to certain public
servants.

The Authority anticipates to pay £0.143m contributions to the scheme in 20152016,
3 Contingent liabilities

The Authority has a 50% stake in Bidston Methane Ltd. Currently the company 15 has
accumulated losses and the Authority’s share of the loss is £203,000 as at 31 March 2016
based on the latest available accounts to 31 March 2015, The Authority has given a
commitmeant to support the company financially. hence it remains valued as a going concaim.
The Authority therefore recognises that it has a contingent liability for its share of the
potantial loss

32 Contingent assetls

On 23rd December 2013 The Authority entered into 2 contract with Sita Sembeoorp UK
{SSUK) Ltd for 30 years. The contract provides for a profit share arising from electricity
generated from the contract. however, the value of the potential mcome from the future profit
share cannot be accurately projected until nearer the time the contract enters its operational
phase as wasie flows and alectricity markets and prices are very likely to change.
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33 Other long-term liabilities
2014115

MNate 209616

E00D EQ0D

{4,232) Pensions ffability 30 {3.840)
{2,363) Merseyside MCC residual debl liability 33 {2,150)
(13,610) Service Concession Liability 28 (12.649)
(20,208) (18,739)

Deferred Liabilities — Merseyside Residual Debt Fund

These are liabilities relating to the Authority's share of debt arising from the former
Merseyside Council and which are payable over time.

2014115 2018M 8
ED0Ds E00Cs
(2,579) Balance b/f {2,363)
216 Repayments in year 215
{2.363) Balance off (2.148)

34  Events after the reporting period

The Statement of Accounts was authonsed for issue by the Director of Finance on 16"

June 2016. Events taking place afier this date are not reflected in the financial statements or
MNotes. Where events taking place before this date provided information about conditions
existing at 31 March 2016, the figures in the financial statements and Noles would be
adjusted in all material respects (o refiect the impact of this infermation

There are no post balance sheet events that would have the effect of altering the Authority’s
financial parformance.
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35 Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd additional disclosure note

Dwuring 2015-16 the Authority's wholly owned company, Mersey Waste Holdings Lid
{MWHL), the former LAWDC (Local Authority Wastie Disposal Company), reviewed ifs
financial resources and made a one off decizsion to pay surpius funds o the Authority The
amount paid to the Authority was £4M and this has bean treated by the Authorily as a return
on capital from the company to the Authority. In my judgement this is the correct treatment

Al the same time the value at which the company is held on the Authority’s batance sheet
has been reviewed by the Authority. As the company was established by statue and was not
a share purchasa by the Authority the value of the £1 share held by the Authority in the
accounts has been a nolional value based on histonc cost and was £5.13BM. As a
consequance of the financial review by the company the Autharity has reviewed the value of
its holding in the company and now considers that it is appropnate to amend the value that
the company Is held &t in the Authority’s accounts from a notional historic cost basis to a
basis that values the company at its fair value based on the current value of the company
based on the latest available accounts. This values the company at £5.049M and is the
value that the company will be included in the accounts from 31 March 2018 This will resutt
in a charge to the General Fund reflecting the change in value from the notional historic cost
basis to the current value basis.

Judgement on impairmeant.

| have considered the impact of impairment on the fair value of Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd
based on the mos| recenl company accounts to ensure the company is recorded in the
Authority's accounts correctly. In undertaking this review, | have had regard to a number of
factors including changes in markel valugs, technology, laws and reguiations, obsolescence
or physical damage, and current and future activity of the company. In my view, having
considered these factors at and after the year end, there is no reason to consider the value
of the company to be mpaired. There is also no new information regarding pension liabilties
that need to be considered and which could result in an impairment. On the basis of my
considerations, there is not considered to be any significant change in the value of the
company between 31 March 2016 and the date of the accounts, The company is used for
accessing landfill by the Authority and any payments for that and any other activity are
funded in a back to back basis by the Authority, so there has been no reason (o consider
that the value of the company should be lower than the value at the year end

@D
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ACCOUNTING POLICIES

General principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Authority’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial
year and it position at the year end of 31 March 2016, The Authonty is required to prepare
an annual Statement of Accounts by the Accounts and Audit (England) Regulations 2011,
which require it to be prepared in accordance with proper accounting practices. These
practices comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authorilty Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015/16 and the Sarvice Reporting Code of Practice 201516, supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and statutory guidance issued under
section 12 of the Local Government Act 2003.

The accounting convention adopted in the Statement of Accounts is principally historical
cost. modified by the revaluation of certain categories of non-current assets and financial
instruments.

The accounts have been prepared on the basis of the Authority’s assessment that it is a
going concern and will continue to be a gaing coancern for a further twelve months from the
date the accounts are approved by the Authority,

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
i} Accruals of Income and Expenditure

Activity is accounted for In the year that it takes place, not simply when cash paymenis are
made or received. In particular

=« revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Authonty transfers the
significant risks and rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that
ecanomic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will fiow to the
Authority,

« revenua from the provision of services is recognised when the Authority can measure
refiably the percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that
economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the
Authority,

* supphes are recorded as expendiiure whan they are congumed — where there |5 a
gap between the date supplias are received and their consumption, they are carmad
as inventories on the Balance Sheel

« Lewes received from the constituent authorities are recognised in the year to which
they relate and are cradited fo the surplus !/ deficit on the provision of services

» expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employess)
are recorded as expenditure when the services are recaived rather than when
payments are made;

» where revenue and expendilure have been recognised bul cash has nol been
received or paid. a debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the
Balance Sheet. Where debts may not be settied, the balance of debtors 15 written
down and a charge made to revenue for the income that might not be collected.
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if) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash Is representad by cash in hand and deposits with financial insttutions repayable
without penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash eguivalents are Investments that
mature in no more than three months or less from the dale of acquisilion and that are readily
converlible to known amounts of cash with insignificant risk of change in value

In the Cash Flow Statemenl, cash and cash equivalents are shown net of bank overdrafis
that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the Authority’s cash management.

iiiy  Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and
Estimates and Errors

Prior peniod adjusiments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to
carrect a material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively,
1.8, in the current and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior
period adjustment

Changes in accounting policies are only made when reguired by proper accounting practices
or the change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions,
other events and conditions an the Authonty's financial position or financial performance.
Where a change is made, it Is applied retrospectively (unless stated otherwise) by adjusting
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior period as if the new policy had
always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending
opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior penod

iv)  Charges for Non-Current Assets

Services are debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets
during the year;

« depraciation atributable to the assels used by the relevant service;

« revaluation and impamment losses on assats used by the service where thare are no
accumuiated gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be
written off;

= amaortisation of intangible fixed assets atinbutable to the service.

Minimum Revenue Provision

The Authority is requirad to make an annual contribution from revenue towards the reduction
in its overall borrowing requirement [equal to either an amount caiculated on a prudent basis
determined by the Authonty in accordance with statutory guidance. Depreciation,
revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by the minimum
revenue provision (MRP) in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the

difference between the two.
G
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V) Employee Benefits
Benefits Payable during Employment

An accrual 18 made to represent the cosl of holiday enlitlement earnad but not taken at each
yaar-end, (o meat Code and |AS reguirements.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a resull of a dacision by the Authonty to
terminate an officer's employment bafore the normal retiremeant date or an officer's decision
to accept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those benefits and are charged on an
accruais basis lo the Noen Distributed Costs line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure Statement when the Authority 15 demonstrably committed to the termination of
the employment of an officer or group of officers or making an offer to encourage voluntary
redundancy.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statulory provisions
require the General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Authonty to
the pension fund or pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the
relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are
required 1o and from the Pensions Resarve lo ramove the notional debits and credits for
pansion anhancement larmination benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the vear-end,

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Authonty are eligible to join the Local Government Pension Scheme,
administered by Wirral Metropolitan Borough Council as the pension fund administering
authority for Merseyside Pension Fund.

The scheme provides defined bensfits to members (retirement lump sums and pensions)
earned as employees of the Authority.

Full details of Merseyside Pension Fund including the Pension Fund Annual Report and
Statement of Accounts can be obiained from

Merseyside Pension Fund
Tth Floor

Castle Chambers

43 Castle Streat
LWERPOOL

LES 2MWY

W TErsevsidepensionfund. oro. wk

Pension costs for those employess who are members of the LGPS, have been recognised in
the statement of accounts on a defined benefits basis in accordance with 1A519 Employes
Benefits, This requires the Authonty to account for its share of the pension fund assets and
liabilities in the Balance Shest, as well as recognising the full cost of providing for future
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retiremant benefits in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The
assumptions used in determining pension costs are as follows

« t{he hiabliities of the Merseyside Pension Fund atinbutable to the Authonty are
included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method —
i.e. an assesasment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement
benefils earnad to date by employees, based on assumplions about mortality rates,
employee turnover rates, etc, and projections of projected earnings for current
employees

« lighiiities are discounted to their value al current prices, using a discount rate based
on actual corporate bond yield less an assumption for inflation.

« The assets of Merseyside Pension Fund attributable to the Authority are included in
the Balance Sheet at their fair value!

o guoted securities - current bid price
o unguoted securities — professional estimate
o unitised securties — current bid price

propery — market vaiua,

Q

s« The change in the net pensions liability s analysad info the following componants
o Sernvice cost comprising:

= current service cost — the increasa in liabilties as a result of years of
service earned this year — allecated in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement to the services for which the employees
worked;

= pasi service cos! — the increasa in liabilties arising from current year
decisions whose effect relates (o years of service earned in earfier
years — dabited to the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Sarvices
in the Comprehensive Income and Expanditure Statement as part of
Men Distnbuted Costs

= net interest on the nel defined benefit liability | 2, net interest expense
for the Authority - the change during the period in the net defined
benefit liabilty that arises from the passage of time charged to tha
Financing and Investment |ncome and Expenditure line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - this s calculated
by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit
obligation at the beginning of the period - taking into account any
changes in the net defined benefil liabdity during the period as a result

of contnbution and benefit payments.
@D
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o Remeasurements comprising

* {he net returm on plan assets - excluding amounts included in nat
interest on the nel defined benefit [Eability - charged to the Pensions
Resarve as Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

= actuanal gains and losses - changes in the net pensions Hability that
arise because events have nol coincided with azsumptions made at
the last actuarial valuation or because the actuaries have updated
their assumptions - charged to the Pensions Reserve as Other
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure

o Contributions paid to Merseyside Pension Fund - cash paid as employer's
contributions to the pension fund in settlement of liabilities, not accounted for
as an expenss

Statutory provisions limit the Authority o raising its Levy to cover the amounts actually
payable to Merseyside Pension Fund or payable direct to pensioners in the year, nol the
amount calculated according fo the relevant accounting standards.

Therefore any difference between the amounts calculated under |AS19 and the statutory
pension fund contribution is accounted for in the Movement in Reserves via a transfer to and
from the Pensions Rezerve. In this manner the notional debits and credits for retirement
penefits are removed and replaced with debits for the cash actually paid to the pension fund
and pansionars and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end The negative
balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thareby measures the beneficial impact to the
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benafits on the basis of cash flows
rather than as benefits are earmed by employees.

The Fund is subject to actuarial revaluation every three years with the latest valuation being
that as at 31 March 2016

vi}  Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable,
that cccur between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of
Accounts is authonsed for issue. Two types of events can be identified:

= lhose thal provide evidence of conditicns thal existed at the end of the raporting
period — the Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events,

« those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reparting period — the
Statement of Accounts s not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of
events would have a material effect, disclosure is made n the Notes of the nature of
the events and their estimated financial effect.

Events taking place after the date of authonsation for issue are not reflactéd in the
Statement of Accounts,

viij Financial Instruments
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Financial Liabilities

Financial Habilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Autharity becomes a party
to the contractual pravisions of a financial instrument and are Initially measured at fair value
and are carried at thelr amortised cosl.  Annual charges to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for
interest payable are based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective
rate of interest for the instrument. The effective interest rate i the rate thal exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at
which it was oniginally recognised.

For most of the Autherity's borrowings, this means that the amounl presented in the Balance
Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable; and interest charged to the Comprehensive
income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according to the loan
agreement.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two lypes.

= lpans and receivables — assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not
guated in an active markel

« avallable-for-sale assets — assets thal have a quoted market price andfor do not have
fixed or determinable payments

Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Authority becomes a
party to the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair
value. They are subsequently measurad at their amorised cost. Annual credits 1o the
Financing and Invastmeant Income and Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statemenl for interest receivable are based on the carrying amount of the assal
multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the instrument

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likefihood arising from a past event
that payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a
charge made (o the refevant sarvica (for receivables specific to that service) or the Financing
and Investmeant Income and Expanditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. The impairment loss 18 measured as the difference between the carrying amount
and the presant value of the revised fulure cash flows discounted at the asset's original
effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the derecognition of an assel are crediled or debited to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statament

Available-for-zsale assets

D
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In line with the Code, the Authornly's interests in Merseywaste Holdings Lid and Bidston
Methane Lid are not classed as Available for Sale assets, because they are consolidated
into the Authority's group accounts.

viii) Interests in Companies and Other Entities

The Authority has material interests in companies that have the nature of subsidiaries and
jointly controlied entities and require it to prepare group accounts. |n the Authonty's own
single-entity accounts, the interests in companies are recorded as financial asssis at cost,
less any provision for losses.

ix) Leases

Leases are classified as finance leasas where the lerms of the lease transfer substantially all
the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the property, plant or equipment from the
lessor to the lessee. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elaments are
considered separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset
in return for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilmant of the arrangament
is depandent on the use of specific assels

The Authority as Lessee
Finance Leases

The Authority has no finance leases.
Operating Leases

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and
Expendilure Statement as an expense of the services benafitting from use of the leased
property, plant or equipmant. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the
lease, evan if this does not match tha pattern of payments (eq, there is a rent-free period at
the commenceman! of the leasea)

The Authority as Lessor

The Autheority has no arrangements which fall into this category.
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x) Property, Plant and Equipment

Assets that have physica! substance and are held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services, for rental o others, or for administrative purposes and that are expected
to be used during more than one financial year are ciassified as Property, Plant and
Equipmeant,

Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Property, Plant and Equipment is
capitalised on an accruals basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic
benefits or service potential associated with the item will fiow to the Authonty and the cost of
the item can be measured refiably. Expenditure that maintains but does not add to an
assel's potential to deliver future economic benefits or service polential {1.e., repairs and
maintenance) is charged as an expense when il s incurred,

Measurement
Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

« the purchase price
= any costs attnibutable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for
it to be capable of operating in the manner intenced by management

The Authority does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under
construction,

Assets are carried in the balance sheet using the following bases:

* assels under construction - depreciated histoncal cost
« @l other assets - fair value, st existing use (EUV)

Where there is no market-based evidenca of fair value because of the specialist nature of an
assel, depreciated replacemeant cost (DRC) is used as an estimate of fair value

Where non-property assets that have short useful lives or low values {or both), depreciated
historical cost basis is used as a proxy for fair valug.

It should be noted that the envirenmental condition of closed |andfill sites makes them
unmarketable and a nominal valus of £1 s attributed to them.

Assels included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to
ansure that thair carrying amount is not materially differant from their fair value at the year-
end, but as a minimum avery five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to
the Revaluation Reserve fo recognise unrealised gains.

The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2007 only, the
date of its formal implementation. Galns ansing before that date have been consolidated

into the Capital Adjustment Account,
D)
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Impairment

Assels are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an assel
may be impaired, Where Indications exisl and any possible differences are estimated to be
material, the recoverable amourt of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the
carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss s recognised for the shortfall,

Where impalrment losses are jdentified, they are accounted for by:

= where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the assel in the Revaluation
Resarve, the carrying amount of the asset is written down against that balance (up lo
the amount of the accumulated gains),

« where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve or an insufficient balance, the
carrying amount of the asset is written down against the relevant service lina{s) in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss s reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant
sarvice line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditura Statemant, up to the amount
of the original loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had
not been recognised.

Depreciation

Depreciation s provided for on all Property, Plant and Equipment by systematically
allocating depreciation over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a
determinable finite useful life (e.g. freehold land) and assets that are nol yat avaifable for use
{e.g. asseis under construction)

Deprecation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the useful iife of the assets.

Where an item of Property, Plant and Equipment asset has major componants whose cost s
significant in relation to the total cost of the item, the components are deprecialed
separately

Revaluation galns are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between
current value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have besan
chargeable based on their histonical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation
Reserve to the Capital Adjustment Account.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally
through & sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an
Asset Held for Sale. The asset is revalued immediately before reclassificabion and then
carried at the lower of this amount and fair value less costs (o sell. Where there s a
subsequent decrease to fair value iess costs to sell, the loss is posted to the Othear
Operating Expenditure fine in the Comprehensive Income and Expendilure Statement,
Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously losses recognised
in the Surplus or Deficit on Provision of Services. Depreciation 18 not charged on Assetls
Held for Sale.
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If assets no longer mest the criteria to be classified as Assets Held for Sale, they are
reclassified back to non-current assets and valued al the lower of their carying amount
before they were classified as held for sale, adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or
revaluations that would have been recognised had they not been classified as Held for Sale.
and their recoverable amount al the dale of lhe decsion not lo seli

Assels that are to be abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assats Held for Sala.

Amounts received for a disposal in excess of £10.000 are statutorily defined as capital
recelpls, and are credited to the Capital Receipts Reserve. These amounts can only be used
for new capital mvestment or set aside to reduce the Authority's underlying need to borrow.
Receipts are appropniated to the Resarve from the General Fund Balance in the Movement
in Reserves Statement,

The written-off value of disposals is fully provided for under separate arrangements for
capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to the Capital Adjustment Account from the
General Fund Balance in the Movement in Resarves Statement.

xi)  Service Concession Arrangements

Service concession arrangements (formerly classed as PRl and similar contracts) are
contractual arrangemaents between the Authority and an operator where responsibility for
providing public services, using assets provided either by the operator or the Authority,
passes to the operator for a specified period of ime. As the Authornty is deemed to control
the services that are provided under its service concession contract, and as ownership of the
property, plant and equipment will pass to the Authonty at the end of the contract for no
additional charge, the Authornity carries the assets used under the contract on its Balance
Sheel as part of Property, Plant and Equipment.

Tha original recagnition of these assels al fair value (based on the cost o purchase the
property, plant and equipment) was balanced by the recognition of a liability for amounts due
to the scheme operator to pay for the capital investment for those assets provided by the
operator under the service concession arrangement. For the Gillmoss Material Recycling
Facility recognised under the Wasie Management Recycling Contract, the liability was
written down by an initial capital contnbution of £16.3m.

MNon current assels recognised on the Balance Sheet are revalued and depreciated in the
same way as proparfy, plant and equipment owned by the Authonty

The amounts payable to the service concession operator each year are analysed into five
elements:

« fair value of the services received dunng the year — debited to the relevant service in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

= finance cost - an interesl charge on the oulstanding Balance Sheel liabilily, debiled
to the Financing and Investment Incame and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive

Income and Expenditure Statement
ED
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= payment lowards liability — applied to wrile down the Balance Sheat liabdlity towards
the service concession operator (the profile of write-downs is calculated using tha
same principles as for a finance lease)

« lifecycle replacemant costs - proporticn of the amounts payable is posted to the
Balance Sheel as a prepayment and then recognised as additions to Property, Plant
and Equipment when the relevant works are eveniually camed out.

xii) Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets
Provisions

Pravisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a legal or
constructive obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits
or service potential, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

For instance, the Authority may be involved in a court case thal could eventually result in the
making of a settlement or the payment of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Authority becomes aware of the
obligation, and are measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the
expenditure required to settle the obligation, taking info account relevant risks and
uncerainfies.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the
Balance Sheel, Estimaled settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year —
where it becomes |ess than probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now ba
required {or a lower settlement than anticipated is made}, the provision is reversed and
credited back to the relevant service,

Where some or all of the payment required lo setlle a provision s expected to be recovered
from another party (eg from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the
relevant service if it is vitually certain that reimbursemeant will be received if the authority
seftles the obligation

Closed landfill sites provision

The Authority provides for the future revenue costs arising from the after care of closed

tandfill sites under its statutory obligations. In accordance with the Code the landfill provision
has been capilalised

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent hability arises where an event has taken place that gives the authority a
possible cbligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of
uncertain future avents not wholly within the control of the Authonty. Contingent liabilities
also arise in circumstances where a provision would otherwise be made but either it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be requirad or the amount of the obligation cannot
be measured reliably

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a Note to the
accounts,
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Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Authority a possible
assel whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of unceriain
future events not wholly within the control of the Authority

Contingent assets are nol recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a Note to the
accounts where it Is probable that there will be an inflow of economic benafits or service
potential

xiii) Reserves

The Authonty sets aside spacific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement When expenditure to be financed from a
reserve is incurred, it Is charged to the appropnate service in that year to score against the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services in the Comprehansive Incoma and
Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated back inta the General Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net charge against
council tax for the expenditura.

Certain resarves are kept lo manage the accounting processes for non-current assets,
financial instruments, retirement and employee benefitz and do not represent usable
resources for the Authority. Unusable reserves are not available for revenue purposes and
certain of them can only be used for specific statutory purposes

The purposes and usage of both usable and unusable reserves are detalled in Notes
accompanying the accounts,

xiv)] VAT

VAT payable s included as an expense only to the extent that it iz not recoverable from Her
Majesty's Revenue and Customs. VAT receivable is exciuded from income,
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GROUP ACCOUNTS

The purpose of the Group Accounts is to provide a picture of Merseyside Recycling and
Waste Authority (the stalutory waste disposal Authonty for Merseyside) and the group of
companies the Authonty owns and influences, The Group Accounts show the full extent of
the Authority's wider assels and liabilities. While the Group Accounts are not primary
statements. they provide transparency and enable comparison with other entities that have
different corporate structures.

The Group accounis consolidate the main accounting statements for Merseyside Recycling
and Waste Authority, Mersey Wasle Holdings Limited and Bidston Methane Limited.

e i’ B i B T T
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Accounting policies for the Group

In common with many other local authonties, where approprate the Authority uses differant
forms of service delivery. In some cases il has created separate companies with to deliver
those services, The use of separate companies means that the Authority's single entity
financial statements on their own do not fully reflect the assets and liabilities or income and
expenditure associated with all of its activities. The aim of the Group Accounts is 1o give an
overall picture of the activities of the Authorily and the resources usad to carry oul those
activities. The Group Accounts also provide further information on the material financial risks
and benefits of all entities over which the Authority exercises control, significant influence or
joimt control

The Group Acoounts have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and cther events in similar circumstances. The accounting policies of the
subsidiaries have been aligned with the policies of the Authority, for the purposes of Group
Accounts, where materially different. Such adjustments as are necessary to align the Group
Accounting policies are made as consolidation adjustments

To give a full picture of the financial activibes of the Authority, Group Accounts have been
prepared which include those organisations where the Authonty's interest is considered
material. This information s still subject to audit by each organisation’s own auditor.

Accordingly the Group Accounts consolidate the Authonty's accounts with the following
subsidiaries:

« Mersey Waste Holdings Ltd: and
. Bidston Methane Lid.

The entities have prepared their accounts in line with IFRSs and UK GAAP rather than tha
CIPFA Code of Practice on Locai Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2014/15 (the
Code). However there are no material areas where this conflicts with the Authority's
accounting policies. Consequently no adjustments have been reguired to realign the
accounts of the Group entities with those of the Authorty. The accounting policies applied to
the Group financial statements are consistent with those set in the single entity statements.

Mersay Wasle Holdings limited has been consolidated an a line by line basis as it is a wholly
owned subsidiary of MWDA Bidston Methane |s consolidated on a proportionate basis due
to MWDA having a 50% stake in the joint venture

Results of subsidiaries

Key information on a group basis has been includad alongside tha single entity disclosure
Notes for reserves, deblors, creditors, segmental reporting and defined benefil schemes.
The following Motes provide additional details about the Authonty's involvement in the
entities consolidated to form the group accounts
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Mersey Waste Hoidings Limited

Mersey Waste Holdings limited is a former LAWDC (Local Authority Waste Disposal
Company} that was established to provide waste managament services for the Authority
Since the procurement of services by the Authority under its Waste Management and
Recycling Contract with Veolia ES a large part of the activity of the company has ceased
However the company is still used by the Authority to access the remaining landfill contracts
held by the FCC at the axisting terms. Other respensibilities 8 g. for the pension liabilies of
former employees are also managed through the company.

MWHL Is a company incorporated under the terms of the Companies Acts. The Authority is
the sole shareholder in the company. Under accounting standards the Authority has a
controfling interest in this company. It is therefore included in the group accounts as a
subsidiary.

The financial performance of MWHL is summarsed below.

2014115

2015M8E

£'000 E'D00
29,158 Tumowver 28,223
177 (Surplus)¥Deficit 158
8,419 MNel Asseis 5,041

A full copy of the company's accounts can be obtained from the Directors, MWHL, 7th Floor,
Mo 1 Mann Island, Liverpool L3 1BP. The accounts are audited by Grant Thornton,

Bidston Methane Litd

Bidstone Methane Lid is a joint venture enterprise established to manage gas production
and elactricity ganeration from cerain closed landfill sites which remain the responsibility of
the Authority. The |oint venture is with INFINIS and has in recent years been operating at a
loss which is reflected in the group accounts. The accounts of the joint veniture are prepared
later than those of the Autharity and so for consolidation purposes the latest avallable set of
accounts is used, There 8 no material impact on the group accounts from adopling this
approach.

2014116 2015/16

E'000 E'DDO
135 Tumover unavallable
(86) (Surplus)Deficit unavailable
40§ Net Liabilities 0

@D

B, L L e P R e
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The accounts are available from Infinis Hoidings, 1st Floor, 500 Pavilion Drive, Northampton
Businass Park, Northamption NN4 7YJ. The accounts are audited by KPMG LLP.
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THE GROUP BALANCE SHEET

The Balance Sheet shows the value as at the balance shest date of the assels and liabilities
recognised by the Group, The net assets of the Group (assets less liabilities) are matched by
the reserves held by the Group. Reserves are reported in two categories: usable and
unusable.

34,877 Property, Plant & Equipment 1 38,543
0 Investments in associales and joint ventures 0

0 Long Term Invesiments 0

0 Deferred tax asset 0
34,977 Long Term Assets 38,543
28  Invenlories 22
1,288 Short Term Debtors 2 1,644
26 488 Cash and Cash Equivalents 3 15,731
0 Current tax asset 1
27,816 Current Assels 17,388
(5,301) Short Term Borrowing 1]
(12.325) Short Term Creditors 4 (13,248)
0 Short Tarm Lease 0]

(391) Provisions {281)
{168) Current Liabilities (9)

0 Current tax liabiiity 0
(18,033) Current Liabilities {13,538)
(5,138) Provisions {4,287)
{17.044) Long Term Borrowing (17,044)
{24 761) Other Long Tarm Liabilities 5 (22.659)
(46,933) Long Term Liabilities (43,998)
(2,173) NetAssets (596)
22 691 Usahble reserves MIRS 17.851
(24 864) Unusable Reserves MIRS (18,447)
(2.473) Total Reserves (596)
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THE GROUP CASH FLOW STATEMENT

201418

£000
(31,709)

4,551

1,808

(25,245)

(307)

{6,328)

{31,880)

58,368
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Motos

Net surplus or (deficit) on the provision of
sorvices

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision
of sarvices for noncash movements

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or
deficit on the provision of services that are
invasting and financing activities

Adjustment for items included in the net suplus
or deficil on the provision of servioes that are
investing and financing activities

Net cash flows from operating activities
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities
Net Cash flows from Financing Activities

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash
equivalents

In year adjustmeant

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of
the reporting perlod

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the
raporting period

201516
£000
(4,629)

(2,811)

{2)

4,000

T (3442)
(1,670)
(5,070)

- (10,182)

(575)

26 488

15,731
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements
1 Property, plant and equipment

Mersey Waste Holdings Limited has no Property Plant and Equipment (PPE)
and so the Group PPE is the same as for the single entity disclosed at Note 8

of the single entity accounts.
2 Cash flow statement

Inter group transactions are eliminated on consolidation, there is no
corresponding entries in the cash flow statement for the Group.

3 Cash and cash equivalents

2014716 2016M6
£000 £000
15,231 Cash held by Subsidiary & Associate 8217
11,257 Cash heid on behalf of the parent authority by St 7,514
Halerns MBEC
T 28,488 Total 15731

4 Short-term borrowing

2014115 2016/16
E00D E0DD
(3,158) Bank overdraft - Mersey Waste Holdings Limited * 0

0 Trade creditors 0

{2,143) PWLB loans 0
~(5301) Total 0

* The bank overdraft is secured by a floating charge over the assets of the Group.
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5 Other Long-Term Liabilities

2014115 201616
£000 EDOD
(4,187) Pension liabilities - Mersey Waste Holdings Limited (3,822)

(4,232) Pension liabilfies - Mersayside Recycling and Waste (3,840)

Autharity
(2,363) Merseyside MCC residual debt lability (2,150)
(13,610) Servica concession liability (12,637)

{24,751) Total Other Long-Term Liabilities

[ Segmental reporting for Group Accounts

Segmental reporting has been presented ai group entity level for the purposes of
group accounts, A more detailed segmental analysis for Merseyside Recycling and
Waste Authorily has been provided in Note 22 of the single entity accounts.

MWHL BML"®
EDOO EDOD E000Q

2015M86

Fees charges and ofher (6,458) (26,342)
sBrvice Income _ _
Levies, precepts and grants (65,591) 0 0 (88,581
Total income (72,048)  (26,342) (53)  (96,444)
Employee expenses 1,304 38 0 1,343
Other service expenses 72250 26,461 6 8B,717
Support service recharge 0 0 {1} (1)
Total Expenditure 73,554 26,501 5 1000
Net expenditure 1,506 159 (48) 1,616
WDA ] T
S0 H Eﬂ[:]l] :I:;: :::1; EEE:
Fees charges and olher (2.37T) (28,158) 0 '(31,535)
sefvice Income _
Levies, precepts and grants (65,591) 0 1] (65,591)
Total income |67,968) (28,158) 0 (87,126)
Employee expenses 1.769 22 O 1.7
Other service axpenses 71,367 28314 0 100,681
Suppor service recharge 47 0 o] 47
Total Expenditure 73,183 29,336 0 102,519
Net expanditura 5,215

178 0 5393
D

R P T T P T
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Wates:

1 The amounts reporied for Merseywaste Holdings Lid have been presented
gross in 2014/15 to more properly reflect information to the company’s
management. Comparative results have been reported net of censolidation
adjustmenis.

2 The accounts for Bidston Methane Ltd for 2015/16 are not yet
available.

Recongciliation of Service Income and Expenditure to Cost of Services in
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of segment income and
expenditure relate to the amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Service Amounts not Met
analysis reaported to  oxpendiiure of
2016/16 management subsidiaries

for decision not included
making in the analysis
E£000 £000

Fees, charges and other (32,853) 0 0 (32,853
sarvice income

Levies, precepts and (65,591) o 0 (85,591)
granis

Total income (98,444) 0 0 (96, 444)
Employee expenses 1,343 0 0 1,343
Other service axpenses 88,717 {4,620) 1.427 95,524
Support service recharges (1) 0 0 (1)
Total expenditure 100,060 {4,620) 1,427 96,867
Surplus or deficit on the 1,616 (4,620) 1,427 (1,577)

provision of services
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Service Amounts not Mat
analysis reported to  expenditura of
management subsidlaries

201418 for decislon  not included

making In the analysis
E00D E000

Fees, charges and other (31,535) 0 356 1,
SEMVIDE INCOMme

Levies, precepts and granis (85,581) 0 0 (65,591)
Total income (97,126) 0 356 {96,770)
Employes expenses 1,791 0 o : 1,791
Other service expenses 100,681 28,120 (6,159) 122,642
Support senvice recharges 47 4] 0 47
Total expenditure 102,519 28,120 (6,159) 124,480
Surplus or deficit on the 5,393 28,120 15,803) 21,710

provision of services

Reconciliation to subjective analysis

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of services income and
expenditure relate to a subjective analysis of the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision
of Services Included in the Comprehensive Incoma and Expenditure statement

2014-15 2015-18

£000 £000

5,393 Nel axpendiure in the Service analysis 1,616
28,120 Services and Support Services not in Analysis 1427
{5,803) Amounts in the Comprehansive Income and axpenditure {4,620)

Statement not reported (o management in the analysis
0 Amounts included in the Analysis not included in the 0

Comprahensive Income and Expenditure Statement

27,710 Cost of Services in the Group Comprehensive Income {1,577)
and Expenditure Statemant

G

W PR
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T Pensions

As part of the terms and conditions of employment of its qualifying officers and other
amployees the Authority and Mersey Waste Holdings Limited offer entrance into the
Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) administered by Wirral Metropolitan
Borough Council. Although retirement benefits will not actually be payable until
employees retire the Authority has a commilment to make the payments that need to
be disclosed at the time that employees earn their future entitlemeant. Disclosures in
relation to the pension liabilitles of the Authority are set out in Note 30 of the single
entity accounts. Disclosures in relation to the pension habilities of Mersey Waste
Holdings Limited are set out below.

LAWDC Pension
Schame
2015116 2014/156 2016M6  2014/15
£000 £000 £000 E£000

Comprehonsive Income and LGPS

Expanditure Statemant

Cost of services

Sarvice oost comprisng:
Current senvice cost 1]
Pasl sarvice cosl 7]
(Gain)/loss from setllemants 1] 0

Financing and Investment Income and

Expenditure:

Net Interest expense 1268 T4 2 8

L =
oo o
o Qo

Total post-employment benefils 128 74 9 8

charged fo the Group Surplus or Deficit
on the Provision of Services

Other post-employmant benefits charged
to the Group Comprehensive Income and
Expanditure Statement

Remeasurament of the tha net dafined
benefil liability comprising.

Return on plan assels (excluding the 145 {345) 67 (87)
amount included in the net interest
BXpEnse)

Actuarial gains and losses arising on ] o 0 0
changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial gains and losses arising on (374) 983 {302) 238
changes in financial assumptions

Other 0 0 22 22
Total post employment benefits
charged to the Group Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement

(101) T2 (204) 171
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LAWDC Pansion
Scheme

2015/16 201415  2015/16 2014115
EO0D  EDOO £000  E00O
(128) (74) (8) ()

LGPS

Movemant in Reserves Statemant

Reversal of nel charges made Lo the
Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services for posl-employment benefits in
accordance with the Code

Actual amount charged against the

general fund balance for pensions in

the year:

Employers’ contributions payable to 233 224

scheme

Retirement benefita payable to pensioners BS B5

Net charge to the General Fund | e "
Summary 105 150 76 7

Pensions Assets and Liabilities Recognised in the Balance Sheat

Local Governmant Discretionary

Pension Scheme Benefits
201816 2014118 2015/168 20M4/15
£000 £00D E000 E 000
Present value of the defined obligation (8.815) (10173) (1,576) (1,875)
Fair value of plan assets 5,700 5824 1,569 1.578
(3915)  (4249) (1)  (298)

Other movemenis in the liability (asset)

Net “"’2::,‘: ;:;:n from the defined (3.915) (4,248) () (296)
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Reconciliation of movement in the fair value of scheme liabilities

Local Governiment
Poanalon Schema

201EMB
£000

2014M5
£000

Discretionary
Banafits

201516 201415

E000

EQ00

Opening fair value of scheme assets. 5024 5,538 1,578

Interest on plan assets 180 316 B3 62
Remeasuraments {assals) (145} 345 {87) a7
Employer contributions 233 224 BS 85
Member contributions 0 0 a D
Benefits/transfers paid {492} (499 {81) {102}
Closing value of scheme assets 5700 5924 1,568 1,579

Reconciliation of present value of the scheme liabilities:

Local Governmont
Penslon Scheme

2015186

2014115

Discrationary
Bansfits

2015M6

201415

£000 EQOD EQDD £000
Opening balance at 1 April (10,173)  (9,299) (1,875) (1,647)
Current service cosl 0 0 0 4]
Interest cost (308) (380) (62 (70)
Member contributions 0 i} 0 D
Past service costsi{gains) o 0 0 (4]
Remeasurements (habilities)
Experience (gain)/loss 0 0 (22} (22)
{Gain)loss on financial assumplions 374 (983) 302 (238)
Benefits/transfers paid 492 489 81 102
Balance as at 31 March (8,615) (10,173) (1,576) (1.875)
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Scheme assets comprised:

Local government pension scheme assets comprised:
Fair valua of scheme assets
201415 201581186
LGPS LAWDC LGPS LAWDC
£000 £000 £000 £000

Equities - quated 3182 2,853

Bonds - quoted 1,081 478 908 487
Property - unquoted 640 o 507 0
Cash - quaoted 178 (7 194 (32)
Other - quoted 883 707 1.140 721

5,924 4,578 5,700 1,568

Basis for estimating assets and liabilities

Liabilities have been assessed on an acluarial basis using the projected unil method,
an astimate of the pansions that will be payable in the future years depandent on
assumptions about moriality rates, salary levels, elc

The Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities have been assessed by Mercer
Human Resource Consulting Lid, an independent firm of actuaries, estimates for
Merseyside Pension Fund being based on the latest full valuation of the scheme as
at 1 April 2013. Tha LAWDC scheme liabilities have been assessed by Hymans
Robertson, independent actuaries, estimates for the LAWDC fund being based an
the latest full valuation of the scheme as &t 1 Apnl 2015,

The significant assumptions used by the actuary are set out below:
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LAWDC LAWDC
Panslon LGPS Penslan

LGPS

Schama Sechemo
2014/18 201415 2016M8 2015816

Long-term expected rate of return on

essets in the scheme:
Mortality assumptions:
Longevity atl 65 current pensionars:
224 205 Men 225 206
253 nfa Women 25.4 nfa
Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
24 8 21.8 Men 24.8 225
28.1 nfa Women 282 nfa
Financial assumptions:
20 23 Rate of CPI inflation 20 22
3.5 343 Rale of ncrease in salaries 3.5 3.2
20 2.4 Rate of increase in penslons 2.0 2.2

3.1 3.4 Discount Rate 3.5 38
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GLOSSARY OF FINANCIAL TERMS

Accounting policies

Thaose principles, bases, canventions, rules and practicas applied by an entity that
specily how the effects of transactions and other events are o be reflectad in the
financial statements through recognising, selecting measurement bases for, and
presenting assets, labilibes, gains, losses and changes in reserves. Accounting
policies do nol include estimation techniques.

Accruals

An accounting concept that requires iIncome and expenditure to be recognised as it &
earned or incurred, nol as monay is received or paxd

Actuarial gains and losses

For a defined benefit pension scheme, the changes in actuarial deficits or surpluses
thal arise because;

ii) Events have not coincided with the acluanal assumptions made for the |atest
valuation (experence gains and losses), or

(it} The actuarial assumptions have changed
Amortisation
The eguivalent of depraciation for intangible fixed assets

Capital charges

To reflect the value of an asset being used to provide services. a capital charge is
made to the revenue accounts.

Capital expenditure

Expenditure on the acquisition of a fixed asset or expenditure which adds to, rather
than merely maintains, the value of an existing fixed asset. Capital expenditure is
normally funded by loans, grants, external contributions, capilal recaipis or through a
revenue confribution

Capital receipts

Income received by the Authority from the sale of its capital assets.
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Current service cost (pensions)

The increase in the present value of a defined benefit schame's liabilities expected to
arise from employesa sarvice in the currant panod.

Curtailment

For a defined benefit scheme, an event that reduces the expected years of future
service of present employees or reduces for a number of employees the accrual of
defined benefits for some or all of their future service, Curtailments include:

fi termination of employees services earlier than expected, for example as a
result of closing or discontinuing a segment of business; and

(i termination of, or amendment o the terms of, a defined benefit scheme so
that some or all future service by current employess will no longer qualify for
benefits or will qualify only for reduced benefits.

Deferred capital receipts

Amounts derved from the sale of assets, but which will be received in instalmeants
over agreed penods of lime. They arise principally from morigages on sales of
council houses which form the main part of mortgages under long term debtors.

Defined benefit scheme

& pansion or other retiremant banefit scheme other than a defined contribution
scheme. Usually, the scheme rules define the benefits independently of the
contributions payable, and the benefits are not directly related to the investmants of
the scheme. Tha scheme may be funded or unfunded (including notionally fundad)

Defined contribution scheme

A pension or other retirement benefits scheme into which an employer pays regular
contributions fixed as an amount or as a percentage of pay and will have no legal or
constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the scheme does not have
sufficlent assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the
current and prior periods

Depreciation

The measure of the wearnng out, consumption, or other reduction in the useful life of
a fixed asset, whether ansing from use, passage of time, or obhsoleacence through
technological or other changes.

Expected rate of return {on pension asseis)

For a funded defined benefit scheme, the average rate of return, inciuding both
income and changes in fair value bul net of scheme expenses, axpacled over the
remaining life of the related obligation on the actual asseis held by the scheme
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Fair Value

The fair value of an asset s the price at which it could be exchanged In an arm's
length transaction, less, where applicable, any grants receivable lowards the
purchase or uee of the assel,

Impairment

A reduction i the value of a fixed asset below its carrying amount on the balance
sneat.

Interest costs (pensions)

For a defined banefit schame, the axpected increase during the period in the present
value of the scheme liabiities because the benefils are one period closer to
setllement.

Met book value

The amount at which fixed assets are included in the balance sheet, L.a, thair
hustorical cost or current value less the cumulative amount provided for depreciation,

Net current replacement cost

The cost of replacing or recreating the particular asset in its existing condition and in
its existing use i e the cost of its replacement or of the nearest equivalent asset,
adjusted to reflect the current condition of the existing asset.

Met realisable value

The open market value of the assel in its existing use (or open market value in the
case of non-operational assets), less the expenses to be incurred in realising the
asset.

Non-operational assets

Fixed assets held by a Local Autharily but not directly occupied, used or consumed in
the delivery of services, or for the service or strategic objectives of the Authonty,
They may comprise: -

i) Assets held for the primary purpose of investmeant from which a commercial
rertal is ebtained,

(i Vacant property awaiting either redevelopment or disposal;

{iii) Land and buildings currently in the course of development bul not yel completed
and occupied for the proposed service
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Operational assets

Fixed assets held and occupled, used or consumed by the Local Authority in the
direct delivery of those services for which it has either a statutory or discretionary
responsibility, or for the service or sirategic objectives of the Authority.

Past service cost or gain

For a defined benefit scheme, the increase or reduction in the present value of the
scheme habilities related to employee service in pnor periods ansing in the current
pariod as a result of the revision of scheme benefits.

Projected unit method

An accrued benelits valuation methad in which the scheme liabilities makea allowance
for projected earnings. An accrued benefits valuation method is a valuation methaod In
which the scheme liabilities at the valuation date relate to:-

i) the benefils for pensioners and deferred pensioners (i e the individuals who
have ceased o be active members bul are entitled 1o benefils payable at a
later date) and their dependants, allowing wheare apprapriate for future
increases,; and

(i) the accrued banefits for mambers in service on the valuation date.
Public works loans board

A Government body which provides loans to local authorities for financing capital
expenditure.

Retirement benefits

All forms of consideration given by an employer in exchange for services rendered by
amployeas that are payable afler the completion of employment. Retiremeant benefils
do not nclude termination benefits payable as a result of aither:-

{i} an employer's decision to terminate an empioyee’s employment before the
normal retirement date; or

(W} an employee's decision to sccept voluntary redundancy in exchange for those
benefits, becauss these are not given in exchange for services renderad by
employees.

Revenue expenditure

Day-to-day expenditure on tems that will generaily be consumed within twalve
months from the date of purchase (e.q, salaries, service running cosls, consumable
materals and equipment, or the cos! of finanging capital assets)



Statement of Accounts 201516

Scheme liabilities

The liabilities of a definad benefits scheme for oulgoings due affer the vaiuation dale
Scheme liabilities measured using the projected unil method reflects the benefits that
the employer s commitied o provide for service up to the valuahion date

Useful life
The period over which the Authority will derive benefits from the use of a fixed asset,
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DRAFT

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF
MERSEYSIDE WASTE DISPOSAL AUTHORITY

Opinion on the financial statements

We have audited the financial statements of Merseyside Wasle Disposal Authority for
the year ended 31 March 2016 under the Audit Commission Act 1988, The financial
statements comprise the Authority and Group Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, tha Authority and Group Balance Sheet, the Authority and
Group Cash Flow Statement and the Auwthority and Group Movement in Resarves
Staternent and the ralated Notes. The financial reporting framework that has bean
applied In their preparation 5 applicable law and the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16

This repor 158 made solely to the members of Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority in
accordance with Part |l of the Audit Commission Act 1898 and for no other purpose,
as set out in paragraph 48 of the Statement of Responsibilities of Auditors and
Audited Bodies published by the Audit Commission in March 2010, To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other
than the Authority and the Authority's Members as a body, for our audit work, for this
report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Respective responsibilities of the Treasurer to the Authority and auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Respansibilities, the Treasurer to the
Authonity is responsible for the preparation of the Statement of Accounts, which
includes the financial statements, in accordance with proper praclices as set out in
the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom, and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, Our responsibility
is to audil and express an opinion on the financial statements In accordance with
applicable law and International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those
slandards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards
for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance that the financial
statements are frea from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error,
This includes an assessment of whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Authority and Group's circumstances and have been consistently apphed and
adequately disclosed. the reasonablenass of significant accounting estimates made
by the Treasurer to the Authority; and the overall presentation of the financal
statements._ In addifion, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the
explanatory foreword to identify material inconsistencies with the audred financial
statements. If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or
inconsislencies we consider the implications for our repon
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Opinion on financial statements
In eur opinion the financial statements:

» give a true and fair view of the financial position of Merseyside Waste Disposal
Authority as at 31 March 2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year
then ended;

= give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group as at 31 March
2016 and of its expenditure and income for the year then ended; and

« have been properly prepared in accordance with the CIPFA/LASAAC Code of
Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 201516,

Opinion on other matters

In our epinion, the information given In the explanatory foreward for the financial year
for which the financial statements are prepared Is consistent with the financial
statements.

Matters on which we report by exception
We report to you if:

s in our opinion the annual governance statement does not reflect compliance with
‘Delivering Good Governance in Local Govermment: a Framework” published by
CIPFA/SOLACE in June 2007;

= we issue a report in the public interest under section 8 of the Audit Commission
Act 1988

» wa designate under section 11 of the Audit Commission Act 15988 any
recommendation as one that requires the Authority to consider it at a public
meeting and o decide what action to take in response; or

s we exercise any other special powers of the auditor under the Audit Commission
Act 1998,

Wae have nathing to repor in these respects.
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Conclusion on the Authority’s arrangements for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in the use of resources

Respective responsibilities of the Authority the auditor

The Authaority is responsibie for putting in place proper arrangements to secure
economy, efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources, to ensure proper
stewardship and governance, and to review regularly the adequacy and effectiveness
of these arrangements.

We are required under Sechon 5 of the Audit Commission Act 1958 to satisfy
ourselves that the Authonty has made proper arrangaments for securing economy,
efficiency and effectiveness in its use of resources. The Code of Audit Practice
issued by the Audit Commission requires us to report to you our conclusion relating
to proper arrangements, having regard (o relevant criteria specified by the Audit
Commission in October 2014

We report if significant matters have come to our attention which prevent us from
concluding that the Authonty has put in place proper arrangements for securing
economy, efficiency and effectivensss in its use of resources, \We are not required to
consider, nor have we considered, whether all aspects of the Authority's
arrangements for securing economy, efficiency and effectiveness in ils use of
resources are operating effectively.

Scope of the review of arrangements for securing economy, efficiency
and effectiveness in the use of resources

We have undertaken our audit in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, having
regard to the guidance on the specified cntena, published by the Audit Commission
n October 2014, as to whether the Authority has proper arrangements for

« securing financial resilience; and
= challenging how it secures economy, efficiency and effectivenass,

The Audit Commission has determined these two criteria as those necessary for us
to consider under the Code of Audit Practice in satisfying ourselves whether the
Authority put in place proper arrangamants for secunng economy, efficlency and
effectiveness in ils use of resources for the year ended 31 March 2016

We planned our work in accordance with the Code of Audit Practice, Based on our
nsk assessment, we undertook such work as we considered necessary to form a
view on whether, in all significant respects, the Authonty put in place proper
arrangements to secure economy, efficiency and effactivenass in its use of
resources.
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Conclusion

On the basts of our work, having regard to the guidance on the specified criterla
published by the Audit Commission in October 2014, we are satisfied that, In all
significant regpacis, Mersayside Waste Disposal Authorily put in place proper
arrangements lo secure ecanomy, efficiency and effectivenass in its use of resources
for the year ended 31 March 2016,

Certificate

We certify that we have completed the audit of the financial statements of
Merseyside Waste Disposal Authority In accordance with the requirements of the
Audit Commission Act 1988 and the Code of Audit Practice issued by the Audit
Commission

Jackie Bellard
Engagement Lead
for and on behalf of Grant Thomton UK LLP, Appointed Auditor

Royal Liver Building, Liverpool L3 1PS
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